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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AAEEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson (Chairman)

Mr. Peter Pannu (CEQO) (appointed on 19 September 2012)

Mr. Hui Ho Luek, Vico (resigned on 1 July 2012)
Mr. Lee Yiu Tung (disqualified on 11 January 2013)

Mr. Chan Shun Wah

Ms. Wong Po Ling, Pauline (resigned on 10 May 2013)
Mr. Cheung Kwai Nang

Mr. Ma Shui Cheong (appointed on 7 December 2012)

Mr. Charlie Penn (appointed on 23 April 2013)

Mr. Chen Liang (appointed on 6 May 2013)
Mr. Cheung Shing (appointed on 6 May 2013)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Wai Keung (resigned on 16 October 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (resigned on 13 May 2013)
Mr. Zhou Han Ping (disqualified on 11 January 2013)

Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson
Mr. Gao Shi Kui (appointed on 6 May 2013)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ip Wing Lun (resigned on 7 December 2012)
Mr. Chow Hiu Tung (appointed on 7 December 2012)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (resigned on 13 May 2013)
Mr. Zhou Han Ping (disqualified on 11 January 2013)

Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson
Mr. Gao Shi Kui (appointed on 6 May 2013)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE AND
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Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (resigned on 13 May 2013)
Mr. Zhou Han Ping (disqualified on 11 January 2013)

Mr. Chan Shun Wah
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson
Mr. Gao Shi Kui (appointed on 6 May 2013)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREEHR

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Units 1901 & 1910, 19/F,

Harbour Centre,

25 Harbour Road,

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

SHARE REGISTRAR

Principal share registrar and transfer office
HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 484,

HSBC House,

68 West Bay Road,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1106,

Cayman lIslands

Hong Kong Branch share registrar
Tricor Tengis Limited

26/F., Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/birminghamint/index.htm

AUDITOR
JH CPA Alliance Limited

LEGAL ADVISERS TO THE COMPANY

As to Hong Kong law
Robertsons Solicitors & Notaries

As to Cayman Islands law
Conyers Dill & Pearman, Cayman

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Wing Hang Bank Limited
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREHRE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Birmingham
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
report the audited consolidated results of the Company together
with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended

30 June 2013.

PERFORMANCE AND REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$294 million
for the year ended 30 June 2013, representing a decrease of 40%
comparing to the turnover of approximately HK$490 million in the
year ended 30 June 2012. The Group also recorded a net loss of
approximately HK$121 million in the current year comparing to the
net profit of approximately HK$144 million in the last year.

BUSINESS PROSPECT AND LOOKING
FORWARD

The Group is principally engaged in professional football
operation, and entertainment and media services.

The acquisition of the controlling interests in BCP would open up
numerous opportunities for the Group to expand and diversify its
businesses and revenues stream, especially in the PRC market.
Following completion of the acquisition, the Group could distribute
BCFC products and apparel and the Group develop chain-store
franchising, merchandising and media services businesses.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREHRE

The first and second years in the Championship were very
challenging and the BCP group almost secured immediate return
to the Premier League for the season 2011/2012 as BCFC was in
the play offs. Unfortunately, BCFC was eliminated in the play offs
semi-final against Blackpool.

The Group will continue to manage the business prudently and
to ensure that the BCP Group will adhere to the financial fair play
rules which will be effective in the UK that requires clubs to be
self sufficient in the long term.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to my fellow directors, management, players, employees
for their contribution and dedication to the development of the
Group and deep thanks to our shareholders, football club fans,
other customers, suppliers and business partners for continuous
support.

Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 November 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

RESULTS

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group recorded a
consolidated turnover of approximately HK$294 million,
representing a decrease of 40% compared to the consolidated
turnover of approximately HK$490 million in the year ended 30
June 2012. Such decrease was mainly due to the significant
dwindling of the revenue from Birmingham City Plc (“BCP”) due
to Birmingham City Football Club (“BCFC”) being relegated from
Premier league to Championship football league.

The Group’s net loss for the year ended 30 June 2013 amounted
to approximately HK$121 million (2012: net profit of approximately
HK$144 million). Such decrease was mainly due to the profit
generated from sales of players’ registrations. The expense for the
year included the amortisation of intangible assets in the United
Kingdom of approximately HK$25 million (2012: approximately
HK$69 million), impairment loss on intangible assets of
approximately HK$4 million (2012: HK$27 million) and the staff
costs of approximately HK$289 million (2012: approximately
HK$319 million).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The Company is engaged in investment holding. The principal
activities of its main subsidiaries are professional football
operation, entertainment and media services.

FOOTBALL OPERATION BUSINESS

BCP is a company domiciled in the United Kingdom, the principal
activities of BCP and its subsidiaries (collectively refer to as
the “BCP Group”) was the operation of a professional football
club in the United Kingdom. The revenue streams of BCP Group
comprised of (i) gate receipts which consisted of season and
matchday tickets; (ii) broadcasting revenue, including distribution
from the Football Association and Championship broadcasting
agreements, cup competitions and revenue from the local media;
and (iii) commercial income which comprised of sponsorship
income, corporate hospitality, merchandising, conference and
banqueting and other sundry revenue.

BCP Group contributed a turnover of approximately HK$294
million to the Group’s turnover for the year ended 30 June 2013
(2012: HK$490 million). It contributed a loss before additional
depreciation for revalued property and amortisation of intangible
assets of approximately HK$96 million and a net loss of
approximately HK$42 million to the Group’s loss for the year
(2012: net profit of approximately HK$215 million).

ES
BE_Z-—=A=Z1+BIFE x&£H
RIS 4R A & ¥ EE#294,000,000/8 7T © BH
E_E-—FEXA=+HLEEZGEEY
% %8 49490,000,000% 7T i 4 40% ° B B
B0 Ty E E AR Birmingham City Football
Club([BCFCl) R BBEE R ERT - FI
Birmingham City Plc ([BCPJ) Z Wz K&
IR ATEL -

AREBHE-_T—=—FNA=ZTHLFE
2 1B F % 4 /121,000,000 t( = &
— 4B F #7144,000,0008 7T ) © B
WA EFEANEEREFMAMELE ZE
FFAE - AFERIBRERE B EE
# §5 #)25,000,0008 m(ZE —Z=F : 4
69,000,000 7T) « ML EE 2 M EEEL
4,000,000 jo(= & — = 4 : 27,000,000
L) & B TR AN #7289,000,000/8 (=%
— % : 49319,000,000/87T) °

EHEEERATR
ARTRFRERR - KEEWBATZE
BEB AR EBETIREE - RERIEER
7 o

RIREER

BCP & —HREEBIEMZ A7) - BCP REHK
BRRA(MEIBCPEE ) 2T EXKRE
Bl B XM EEE BCPEBZEARRE
B()BREEZREEAMARZAREA (i)
BREOERARBEREERERRE R - 7
BZEBERAARKREABREZBA + &
(i) EERA - BREPDEA - REIREF
R g hES  ANEMEEKE -

BCPEBAKREERE-_T— = A=+
B 14 FE & 2 5B 2R 49 294,000,000 8 7T (=
T ——4F : 490,000,000 ) 2 LB - &
ABASEZ AFEBEE R RELYES
SINIT & I ST & GH A S 18 49 96,000,000
7 JT N B 18 % B8 442,000,000 o (= =
— —4F : 45549 215,000,000 7T) ©

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED {HBASIR B IZRR A R A 7]



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

FOOTBALL OPERATION BUSINESS (continued)

The first and second years in the Championship were very
challenging and the BCP Group almost secured immediate return
to the Premier League for the season 2011/2012 as BCFC was in
the play offs. Unfortunately, BCFC was eliminated in the play offs
semi-final against Blackpool.

The Group will continue to manage the business prudently and
to ensure that the BCP Group will adhere to the financial fair play
rules which will be effective in the UK that requires clubs to be
self sufficient in the long term.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 30 June
2013 (2012: Nil), nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of reporting period.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The current ratio (current assets to current liabilities) of the Group
as at 30 June 2013 was 50.66% (2012: 76.43%) and the gearing
ratio (borrowings in long term portion to equity and non-current
liabilities) of the Group as at 30 June 2013 was 54% (2012:
66.09%). The ratio of total liabilities to total assets of the Group as
at 30 June 2013 was 121.35% (2012: 96.26%).

At 30 June 2013, the cash and bank balances of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$50 million, representing a
decrease of 31.51% compared to the cash and bank balances of

approximately HK$73 million as at the last financial year end.

At 30 June 2013, the borrowings (including current portion and
long term portion) of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$180 million (2012: HK$112 million), representing bank and
others loans in the United Kingdom and other borrowings in Hong
Kong.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 40 to the financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s subsidiaries mainly operates in the United Kingdom
and most of their transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Pound Sterling (“£”) and does not have significant
exposure to risk resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange rate. The Group does not have any derivative financial
instruments to hedge its foreign currency risks.

PLEDGE OF GROUP’S ASSET

At 30 June 2013, the Group has the freehold land and buildings
with the carrying value of approximately £23 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$251 million) for the bank borrowings and the
general banking facilities granted to the Group. The secured bank
borrowings of the Group of approximately HK$3 million are also
secured by unlimited multilateral guarantees given by certain of
its subsidiaries in the Group.

Save as the above, the Group did not have assets charged nor
pledged to secure any outstanding borrowing.

HUMAN RESOURCE

At 30 June 2013, the Group employs approximately 180 full
time employees and approximately 640 temporary staff in Hong
Kong and the United Kingdom (2012: 180 full time employees
and 640 temporary staff). The Group remunerated its employees
mainly based on industrial practice, individual’'s performance
and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration, discretionary
bonus may be granted to eligible employees with reference to
the Group’s performance as well as the individual performance.
In addition, share options may also be granted from time to time
in accordance with the term of the Company’s approved Share
Option Scheme.

PLAYER TRANSFER COSTS

Under the terms of contracts with other football clubs in respect of
the player transfers, additional player transfer cost would become
payable if certain specific performance conditions are met. The
maximum amount not provided that could be payable in respect of
the transfers up to 30 June 2013 was approximately HK$8,248,000
(equivalent to £714,000). At the end of the reporting period and
up to the date of approval of the financial statement, none of
these amounts has become crystallise.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEANEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson, aged 53, has accumulated many
years of experience in international investments. He has been
the Chairman of Hong Kong Rangers Football Club during
2005 to 2006. Mr. Yeung is a director of Universal Management
Consultancy Limited and Universal Energy Resources Holdings
Limited.

Mr. Peter Pannu, aged 50, has obtained a LL. B degree and LL.
M degree majoring in corporate and financial law from London
University and a post graduate certificate law (P.C.L.L) from Hong
Kong City University. In addition, Mr. Pannu holds a Master of
Management & Business of Football from University of London.

Mr. Cheung Kwai Nang, aged 48, has extensive experience in
law and litigation for both civil and criminal. He has obtained the
qualification of LL. B and is a member of Law Society of Hong
Kong. Mr. Cheung is a partner of K.B. Chau & Co.. He has been
employed as a court prosecutor in the department of justice of
HKSAR.

Mr. Chan Shun Wah, aged 50, has senior experience in the
management of project investments. He also has extensive
experience in engineering and multi-media. He has completed his
diploma at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Ma Shui Cheong, aged 53. He is currently a managing
director and an executive director of Sing Pao Media Enterprises
Limited (stock code: 8010) which is listed on the GEM Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Business Administration in Management from The Open
University of Hong Kong. In the past working experience, he had
substantial senior management experience in managing various
businesses.

Mr. Charlie Penn, aged 50. Obtained University of Administration
and Computer Application, Master studing of Political Economy
at Peking University. Formerly, Mr. Penn had more than 10 years
experiences in electronics manufacturing company in the capacity
as an investment management. He has more then 15 years of
investment experiences in industrial, commercial and real estate
operating in Shanghai, Tianjin, Liaoning, Jiangxi and Jiangsu
province and Canada.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEANEEE

Mr. Chen Liang, aged 44, holds a Doctoral Degree in Coal,
Oil and Gas Geology and Exploration from China University of
Petroleum (Beijing), and worked for various oil companies and
research institutes in China and abroad. He was a vice president
of CITIC Resources Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) (stock code: 1205), during the period from September
2005 to November 2006 and the technical planning vice president
of CITIC Seram Energy Limited during the period from December
2006 to February 2010. During the period from April 2010 to July
2011, Mr. Chen was an executive director of Vitar International
Holdings Limited (now known as L’sea Resources International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 195). Since December 2011, Mr.
Chen has been chief executive officer & executive director of
China Natural Investment Company Limited, a company listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
8250). Mr. Chen has accumulated around 20 years of working
experience in petroleum exploration and development.

Mr. Cheung Shing, aged 60, is currently an executive director of
China Oil and Gas Group, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 603) from 2006. Mr. Cheung
was the deputy chairman and an executive director of Sino Union
Energy Investment Group Limited (now known as “Yanchang
Petroleum International Limited”), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 346). Mr. Cheung had
been the chairman of each of Wah Chung (HK) Limited, Henan
Shenghua Petrochemical Co., Ltd. and Liaoning Xinmin Petroleum
Company Limited during the period between 1993 and 2004. Mr.
Cheung worked in Qilu Petrochemical Refinery, Shengli Qilfield
Company, and Zhongyuan Oilfield Company of China National
Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC”) and has been a management
economist of CNPC during the period between 1969 and 1993.
Mr. Cheung is currently a visiting lecturer of Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics, the vice president of Hong Kong General
Association of International Investment and the deputy director of
China Petroleum Business Council.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEANEBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson, aged 35, has substantial experience
in auditing and financial accounting experiences. He is a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Wong holds a Bachelor degree in Economics from Simon Fraser
University and a Diploma in Financial Management from British
Columbia Institution of Technology.

Mr. Gao Shi Kui, aged 61, has over 40 years’ experience in
the areas of exploration, development, production and sales of
crude oil and has held various senior positions in companies
engaged in these fields such as B A AENEMEFR AR (China
Petroleum Exploration Development Company Limited, being its
unofficial English translation) and FE&F AmmEERIFBR A
A] (China Ocean Petroleum South East Company Limited, being
its unofficial English translation). He was the managing director
of China Everbright Petroleum (International) Limited and China
Everbright Petroleum Exploration & Investment Co., Ltd. during
November 1998 to December 2007. Mr. Gao was also one of the
vice chairman of China Guangdong Petroleum Society and the
deputy chairman of China Chamber of Commerce for Petroleum
Industry. From 2008 to 2011, he acted as the president of
Sysmoto Group Limited and concurrently held the position of chief
executive officer of Beijing Sysmoto Joyful Multimedia Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Sysmoto”), a subsidiary of Sysmoto Group Limited. He
has been appointed as non-executive director of China Netcom
Technology Holdings Limited, a company listed in the Growth
Enterprises Market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8071),
since November 2012.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Wen Jun, aged 55, Mr. Li was graduated from Department
of Chemical Machinery of South China University of Technology.
He has passed the national training and examination organised by
the State Council of the PRC in respect of the overseas delegated
engineer and he has also passed the national training and
examination for managers and factory director. Mr. Li has more
than 25 years of extensive experience in chemical engineering
and management of the chemical industry in the PRC. Mr. Li has
also conducted various research and development projects in
relation to organic chemistry majoring in research on treatment of
sewerage by BAF (Biological Aerated Filter).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased
to present this Corporate Governance Report in the Company’s
annual report for the year ended 30 June 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board believes that good corporate governance is crucial
to improve the efficiency and performance of the Group and to
safeguard the interests of the shareholders.

The Board has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The Board is pleased to report compliance with code provisions of
the CG Code for the period from 1 July 2012 up to 30 June 2013.

(a) Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. The Company deviates from the above code
provision as all non-executive director and independent
non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) are not appointed
for specific terms. According to the provisions of the
Company'’s Articles of Association, however, and INEDs are
subject to retirement and re-election. The reason for the
deviation is that the Company believes that the Directors
ought to be committed to representing the long term
interest of the Company’s shareholders.

(b) Code provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association,
the chairman shall not be subject to retirement by rotation
or be taken into account in determining the number of
directors to retire in each year. In order to ensure the
smooth running and continuous adhering to the strategic
view of the Company, the Company believes that the
position of chairman is more practical to be maintained and
not to be subject to retirement by rotation.
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E-T—ZEXNAZTHIEFEZFERAE
ZATEEARSE ©

EER
EFEIRR T REANREAEERE
BER  ARRERRISEAEE -

EEZSCRMBEMAERXIMARARRES
LR RIS+ P 2 DR EVR T R TR
(TexERTA) -

“E-—F+tA-HEE
SA=THIEHRETEEER

(a) TFREHAXEBEALIGRTEIFRNTES
CEREERBEEES YARXE
& o IR ERIFNITES LB IEA
TEF(BILFATEF N 2REY
EIREMES - WA AR REE LRl
iR e AT RBARR 2 EBETRE
ARIZ AR - BIFRITEFARE
REXEE - REREADARRRE
BEEHAAHERRARRABRR 2 REN

o

B

ANEXFEALIGREMBESTRE
PE=FHESE R - BREERQ
BlZHEMERAR TRBARES
R -MREESFERIEFTAN
B A AESP - RERARF
IEF & 58 J 4% BB 7 A A R 2 REG 1%
B - ARBREEFEFEBE R
BEBESRELNEAT -

Ul

el

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED {HBASIR B IZRR A R A 7]



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the full set of Model Code set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of the conduct
for securities transactions by directors (the “Model Code”). The
prohibitions on securities dealing and disclosure requirements
in the Model Code apply to specified individuals including the
Group’s senior management and also persons who are privy to
price sensitive information of the Group. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, the Board confirms that the directors
of the Company have complied with the Model Code regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the year and up to the
date of publication of this Annual Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Company has a separate chairman and chief executive
officer. The two positions are assumed by different persons, in
order to ensure that their independence, accountability and power
are clear. Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson, the chairman of the Board,
is responsible for the operation of the Board and the formulation
of the Company’s strategies and policies, Mr. Peter Pannu, the
chief executive officer, with the assistance of other members
of the Board and senior management, is responsible for the
management of the Company’s business, the implementation of
significant policies, the daily operational decisions as well as the
coordination of the overall.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a) Up to the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises
a total of ten members including eight executive directors
and two independent non-executive directors. Members
of the Board have different professional and relevant
industry experiences and background so as to bring in
valuable contributions and advices for the development
of the Group’s business. Two out of ten of the Board is
independent non-executive directors and one of them is
qualified accountant in Hong Kong.

As required under Rule 3.10A of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, an issuer must
appoint independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the board. The Company now has two
Independent Non-Executive Directors and is identifying
suitable candidate(s) to fill the vacancy as soon as
possible.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
XERRSE

i

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(b)

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive director of their
independence to the Group. The Group considered
that all independent non-executive directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms
of the guidelines. The names of the directors and their
respective biographies are set out on pages 9 to 11 of this
Annual Report.

The Board holds meetings on a regular basis and will
meet on other occasions when a board-level decision on a
particular matter is required. The Board also monitors and
controls financial performance in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. The names of the directors during the
financial year and their individual attendance of are set out
below:

EEE )

(b)

ARG EEESBIYIENTEERF
ErBUMEMRMASRER L 2 FEE
RE - AEKERABEEBELIENTE
EFA LETRAUESASEHE 2B
155l BIREZIBSI 2 GERBE LA
T FEEULERBEESEZEREHR
KERFIEI1H »

ExeE RN ARERMERFEE
HEFEREKBTER - EFEN
ERRERASERNERRKIERR
B2HBRER VBRFERNZESH
HREERHEREHNAT

Audit

Board Committee

Name of Directors EEsR EEEg ERZES
Executive: HITES

Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson (Chairman) BRBIEE(EE) 8/11  N/ATEA
Mr. Lee Yiu Tung FRRAEAE

(disqualified on 11 January 2013) (R=ZZ2E—=F— A+ —HWEEER) 0/5 N/ATEMA
Mr. Chan Shun Wah BR B2 5 A& 8/11  N/ATEHA
Ms. Wong Po Ling, Pauline FERLZL

(resigned on 10 May 2013) (RZZT—=FRA+BEIT) 3/9 N/ATEA
Mr. Peter Pannu (CEO) Peter Pannu st £ (& E#H7TE)

(appointed on 19 September 2012) (RZZE—=FhAT+ILBEZE) 10/10  N/ANER
Mr. Cheung Kwai Nang RERELE 8/11  N/ATEH
Mr. Ma Shui Cheong EmE%E

(appointed on 7 December 2012) (R—ZT——F+-A+HEZT) 6/7 N/ATEHA
Mr. Charlie Penn EERE

(appointed on 23 April 2013) (RZZE—=FmA-+=HEZMT) 1/2 N/ATEHR
Mr. Chen Liang PRI

(appointed on 6 May 2013) (R=—Z—=FRAAEEZT) 0/1  N/ATEA
Mr. Cheung Shing R

(appointed on 6 May 2013) (R=ZZ—=FRANAEZEME) 01 N/ATER
Mr. Hui Ho Luck, Vico FHERE A

(resigned on 1 July 2012) (R=ZZT—=—F+A—AFT) 0/0  N/ATER
Non-executive: FHTES !

Mr. Chan Wai Keung PRIZ SR ST &
(resigned on 16 October 2012) (R=ZZ2—=F+A+/BHME) 1/2  N/ATER
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ExER®E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

EE2 )

Audit
Board Committee

Name of Directors EEHR EEEg EXRKZEE
Independent non-executive: BYFHTES :
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond o B AR S A

(resigned on 13 May 2013) (R—ZT—=FHA+=HET) 7/10 2/2
Mr. Zhou Han Ping EEFRER_E—=F—A+—H

(disqualified on 11 January 2013) WEUEE) 0/5 0/0
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson BERELEE 6/11 2/2
Mr. Gao Shi Kui (appointed on 6 May 2013) BEEE(R_E—=FAAKH

BEE) 0/1 0/0

(d) The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Company, oversee the Group’s businesses and
evaluate the performance of the Group. The Board also
focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of
the Group.

(e) The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to Executive Directors and senior management, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval. When
the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to Management, it has given
clear directions as to the powers of the Management,
in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
Management shall report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has one Non-executive directors Mr. Chan Wai Keung
(resigned on 16 October 2012). He is subject to retirement and
eligible for election in annual general meeting in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company.

(d) EZCAEARACEBRETE B
BERAEBEBRTIBEAEE X
B -BFZGgNEFHTEERIEREK
B ALHBIASEEZHERREMBEER
I8 o
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
TRAINING

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year ended
30 June 2013, Directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company updates Directors on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a Nomination Committee which comprises
two independent non-executive directors and one executive
director, Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (resigned on 13 May
2013), Mr. Zhou Han Ping (disqualified on 11 January 2013), Mr.
Chan Shun Wah, Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson and Mr. Gao Shi
Kui (appointed on 6 May 2013) up to the date of this report. It is
chaired by Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee have been reviewed with reference to
the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of directors, and assessment of the
independence of the independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference
to the skills, experience, professional knowledge and personal
integrity of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other
relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external
recruitment agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment
and selection process when necessary.

ESEZHEERE

BRHMEECEETHEEHRBE 2 AR
REH  BRARBEEARRZEEREBLAR
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BEABN R c RARTRREREM -
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VRFAHEHRFEEEAERZEH °

REZEEE

EXeRARALRS  BEAREAH
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for considering
and approving the appointment of its members and making
recommendations to shareholders on directors standing for
re-election, providing sufficient biographical details of directors
to enable shareholders to make an informed decision on the
re-election and where necessary, nominate and appoint directors
to fill casual vacancies. The chairman may in conjunction with
the other directors from time to time review the composition of
the Board with particular regard to ensuring that there is an
appropriate number of directors on the Board independent of
management.

Name of members of

REZER#)

RAZEBENMEAZERNERKE S
F rHpERsEERREIEL RS 2
HRHEEFERE - AER R E R D A
RE UREEERIELRELE FERH
B o TN AEERLMESRIES
SHEK BREREEEENETHEEA
BB NERAS -

Number of meetings
attended in the financial
year ended 30 June 2013
BE-_Z—=FXA=t+HL

Nomination Committee REZEEHEHSA HRFEHFEZERRY
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond BB AR A&

(resigned on 13 May 2013) (RZZ—=FHA+=HFT) 3/3
Mr. Zhou Han Ping BEFEER_ZE—=F—A+—H

(disqualified on 11 January 2013) WEUBERE) 0/2
Mr. Chan Shun Wah BRIEZE 5 4 3/3
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson mERRIE 3/3
Mr. Gao Shi Kui R

(appointed on 6 May 2013) (RZE—=FRABEZMT) 0/0

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a Remuneration Committee which
comprises two independent non-executive directors and one
executive director, namely Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (resigned
on 13 May 2013), Mr. Zhou Han Ping (disqualified on 11 January
2013), Mr. Chan Shun Wah, Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson and
Mr. Gao Shi Kui (appointed on 6 May 2013) up to the date of
this report. Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson is the chairman of the
Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the executive
directors and the senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

FMEES

ExeXEFNEZES  HEAREAY
KEREMEBELIFNTEER —BRTE
= IBHEEE(R_ZT—=FRA+=
BT BEFEER=2Z—=F—A8
T—HHEBCHEER) RIEZELA BEXRE%
EERSHHEEE(R=_Z—=FAAH
EEE) EXREERZESGIEF -

FINZE 2T REREREAFMBERRRERE
FATEERSMERAB ZFHHFBRH
BELELIE FHEESTREARGE
FMBRERBRILABAEZIEF - UARE
RESHHTMBRA LT ESEREEAR
F2HM EFME2EEARARARE
KIS & B R AR EE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Remuneration Committee normally meets annually for
reviewing the remuneration policy and structure and determination
of the annual remuneration packages of the executive directors
and the senior management and other related matters. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Board about these
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages.

Emolument Policy
The directors are paid fees in line with market practice. The Group
adopted the following main principles of determining the directors’

remuneration:

— No individual should determine his or her own
remuneration;

— Remuneration should be broadly aligned with companies
with who the Group competes for human resources;

— Remuneration should reflect performance.
In addition to the basic salaries, a share option scheme is adopted
for rewarding good performers as well as retaining talented staff

for the continual operation and development of the Group.

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of members of

FMEES )

HWES S —RE AR FIMBEREER
ETHTESRERERAL Y EEFHHG
BREMEBEEMSEETEE - HHE
EeAREUTFMHEE REERFWNEE
RETHEEGZER

BEBR
EEENZHRENATHEN - AEERK
MATETEEME 2T 2R

— EAEMALFAREERST Z2ME

— HERABEAEEFDANERZ

NAEA -

— B e SRR IR -

BRERF DI RARBTRBBRES
RAEBHBEERBREDESFSETIR
nEETHEE -

BB ZEFEHEINWT :

Number of meetings
attended in the financial
year ended 30 June 2013
BE-ZT-=FX<A=tHL

Remuneration Committee FHEESERENS HRFEHREZERBRE
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond BB

(resigned on 13 May 2013) (R=Z—=FRA+=HET) 3/3
Mr. Zhou Han Ping JEET A&

(disqualified on 11 January 2013) (R=ZE—=F—A+—HHIUEERK) 0/2
Mr. Chan Shun Wah BRIEZE 5E & 3/3
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson ERESEAE 3/3
Mr. Gao Shi Kui RS

(appointed on 6 May 2013) (M—Z—=FFHAAEEZE) 0/0
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ExER®E

AUDIT COMMITTEE ERERE

The Audit Committee comprises of two independent non-executive BTiZEZESKEBIEMEEIIEHITEESL
directors, namely Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (resigned on 13 HEEA4.4AE(R-—ZE—=FRA+=-HE/T)
May 2013, Mr. Zhou Han Ping (disqualified on 11 January 2013), [EZzEELEE(R_ZE—=F—HF+—B®HEUY
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson and Mr. Gao Shi Kui (appointed on 6 &) - &ExEELRSHEREA(R-_ZE—=

May 2013). FRHANBESRT) -

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following: EREEeTEREVRIENYSIE

— To review the financial statements and reports and consider — — EHMERERLRE  TNREXESE
any significant or unusual items raised by the qualified SHZEABEREEE C AREMFE
accountant, compliance officer or external auditors before HNEIZBAN IR I 2 (EATE RIS
submission to the Board; WIER

— To review the relationship with the external auditors by — &%ff?%(ﬁﬂiﬁﬁi&ﬁZI{”E CHEBE K
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees PR A s BEA ONEEAZ BB 2 BAMR -
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to \/EJE%E% - AEEE N BB G HNEB A AT A)
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal EEIREEE

of external auditors;

— To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the — W AN RBM SRR EE - NELEEIE
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control SEEREEREGEREERFZE
system and risk management system and associated VR B B -
procedures.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 30 ‘| EEeRHEZEZ - T—=—FxA=+HIt
&

&= BEIT{ERREMIG
financial reporting and compliance procedures, and the re- E&ENRE - BEBRFLREBRIZ T NLERE

June 2013 including the review the financial results and reports, FE R8T
appointment of the external auditors. HNEEAZ ERAT o

The Board has not taken any different view from that of the Audit  FtiZi12 - Z B2 .« BriE ok iR B2 S B2 4% S Bl
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or 5§ EE@HEXLZE @ ERWEDL

dismissal of external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 30 June 2013 HERZZESEREMARAHE_ZT—=F
reviewed by the Audit Committee. A=+tBHIFEZEZFEE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of members of

EREES®)
SMEBYEEERFIMT -

Number of meetings
attended in the financial
year ended 30 June 2013

BE-Z—=FXxA=t+HL

Audit Committee ERZEEHRAEN®SE HMREEHEZEERE
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond b 2 RF 4 A

(resigned on 13 May 2013) (R=ZZ—=FRA+=HFT) 2/2
Mr. Zhou Han Ping EEF L

(disqualified on 11 January 2013) (RZZ—Z=ZF—A+—BHIUEEE) 0/0
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson BERELEE 2/2
Mr. Gao Shi Kui R

(appointed on 6 May 2013) (R=ZZE—=FRANHEZMT) 0/1

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An amount of approximately HK$1,200,000 was charged to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2013 for the auditing services provided by JH CPA Alliance
Limited.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board had conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Group. The Group’s internal
control system includes a defined management structure with
limits of authority, is designed to help the achievement of business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation
and regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operation
systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives. The Board
throughout the Group maintains and monitors the internal control
systems on an ongoing basis.

BT
#71,200,0008 T2 RIBE R EESFHAIE
BRAERARRECEZREEAETHZE
—E-ZEXNAZTHLEFEZRATKIER
=Bk »

R EREE 12
EEgCRAAEENEPEERE 2K -
AEBzARERGEREREAERZAE
B DRAMHENXNEKBESR REE
EUAREREZERNEE  EEEEZ
GBI RBSURETEL AT RH A SE 2 B E R
HABMEM LB INEN - URRRT AR
PIERAIMR - ZHIEEEREM(EIFRB
Ui RBELEBEAKRERAHIER - X FE
EB(MERE)AREZZ2ERRRRZAE
B NERAKBEZBR EFENAEE
NIESE MR R R NP IEHE -
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TEERBRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The management provides such explanation and information to
the Board and reports regularly to the Board on financial position
and prospects of the business of the Company so as to enable
the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board for approval.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities (as set out in
the Independent Auditor’'s Report) for preparing the financial
statements of the Group that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group. The Board was aware material uncertainties
from the unavailability of future funding available would raise
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and the Board has prepared the financial statements on
a going concern basis. The responsibility of the external auditor
is to form an independent opinion, based on their audit, on those
consolidated financial statements prepared by the Board and
to report their opinion to the shareholders of the Company. A
statement by auditor about their reporting responsibility is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chow Hiu Tung (“Mr. Chow”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 7 December 2012.

According to the newly introduced Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Chow has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the financial year ended 30 June 2013.
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TEERBRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and
at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”).

Right to convene extraordinary general meeting

Any one or more members holding at the date of the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition sent to the Company’s principal office as set out
in the manner below, to require an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposit it to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal
place of business at Units 1901 & 1910, 19/F., Harbour Centre,
25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and such may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The request will be verified with Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the company secretary of the
Company will ask the Board to convene an EGM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements
to all registered members. On the contrary, if the request has
been verified is not in order, the shareholders will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened
as requested. If within twenty one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisition(s), may convene a meeting in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed by the Company to the requisitionist(s).
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TEERBRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

The notice period to be given to all registered members for
consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionist(s)
concerned at the EGM varies according to the nature of the
proposal, as follows:

At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing (and not less than 10
business days) if the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of
the Company;

At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing (and not less than 10
business days) if calling for an annual general meeting or the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company in EGM.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong or email to info
@binhl.com.hk for the attention of the company secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to purpose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman lIslands
Companies Law (2011 Revision). However, shareholders are
requested to follow Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of
Association for including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements
and procedures are set out above. Pursuant to Article 88 of
the Company’s Articles of Association, no person, other than a
director retiring at a meeting, shall, unless recommended by the
directors for election, be eligible for appointment as a director
at any general meeting unless there shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the registration office notice in writing
signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his intention to propose that person for election
as a director and also notice in writing signed by that person
of his willingness to be elected as a director. Unless otherwise
determined by the directors and notified by the Company to the
shareholders, the period for lodgment of said notices shall be a
seven day period commencing on the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting for such election of director(s)
and ending on the date falling seven days after the dispatch of the
said notice of the general meeting. The written notice must state
that person’s biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing rules.
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TEERRE
INVESTOR RELATIONS BREEBRE

The Company has established a range of communication ZARARIHEHERKRE - KEEREMFEIEREE
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors and other &YV —ZRJEREE BEREBEFEFAS
stakeholders. These include the annual general meeting, the FERTHERE  BE - 2 BEHEAK
annual and interim reports, notices, announcements and circulars A & #8 Uk http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/
and the Company’s website at http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/  birminghamint/index.htm °
birminghamint/index.htm.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, there had been no REE-_Z—=A=+tHIEE AR
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents. RZBEEXM W MERES o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) have pleasure in submitting
their report together with the audited financial statements of
Birmingham International Holdings Limited (hereinafter referred
as to the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred as to the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are engaged in (i)
professional football operation; (ii) entertainment and media
services and (iii) investment holding. The activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and others
comprehensive income on page 37.

The state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 30 June
2013 are set out in the consolidated and Company’s statement of
financial position on pages 38 to 40 respectively.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
nor transfer of any amount to reserves in respect of the year
ended 30 June 2013 (2012: Nil).

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to the results
by principal activities for the year ended 30 June 2013 is set out
in Notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and of the Company during the year ended are set out in
Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year ended are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year ended are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 41 and Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 136.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the financial year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson
Mr. Peter Pannu (appointed on 19 September 2012)

Mr. Lee Yiu Tung (disqualified on 11 January 2013)

Mr. Chan Shun Wah

Ms. Wong Po Ling, Pauline (resigned on 10 May 2013)
Mr. Cheung Kwai Nang

Mr. Ma Shui Cheong (appointed on 7 December 2012)

Mr. Charlie Penn (appointed on 23 April 2013)

Mr. Chen Liang (appointed on 6 May 2013)
Mr. Cheung Shing (appointed on 6 May 2013)
Mr. Hui Ho Luek, Vico (resigned on 1 July 2012)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Chan Wai Keung (resigned on 16 October 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (resigned on 13 May 2013)
Mr. Zhou Han Ping (disqualified on 11 January 2013)

Mr. Wong Ka Chun
Mr. Gao Shi Kui (appointed on 6 May 2013)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson, Mr. Chan Shun
Wah, Mr. Charlie Penn, Mr. Chen Liang, Mr. Cheung Shing and
Mr. Gao Shi Kui, shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM”) and Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson, Mr.
Chan Shun Wah, Mr. Charlie Penn, Mr. Chen Liang, Mr. Cheung
Shing and Mr. Gao Shi Kui shall be eligible for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
on pages 9 to 11 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
During the year ended 30 June 2013, Asia Rays Limited (“Asia
Rays”) provided consultancy services to the Group amounting to
approximately HK$5,920,000 (2012: HK$8,063,000) based on the
contractual terms of the agreement. Peter Pannu, a director of the
Company has beneficial interests in Asia Rays.

Save as the above, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

EECvRSER

At 30 June 2013, the interests of the Directors and chief executive @R-ZE—=%F,A=1H BEBZLHELHPE
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures (& HI([ & % R H & &0 1) 5 352 (& 1R & A&
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the R FIZATRF 2 S MR - SR BEE
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the SFRIARARIREXZMZEEZBN  SEEK
“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the AT F BITHA BRARD T 8 H (F (A #a ¥
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified JEE(FEREZHF NP EEGIEXVE) 2’
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model {5 ~ RN RESFZEZIAT ¢

Code, were as follows:

(i) Shares (i) gl
Percentage
Number of of the
issued issued share
ordinary capital of the
shares held Company
Name of directors Nature of interest Notes BT EARDFERIT
BEEnE EEME Hist EEREA BABS
Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson Held by controlled corporation (1) 837,469,066 (L) 21.54%
BRALE RS NES ]
Personal interest 185,452,800 (L) 4.77%
B A2
1,022,921,866 26.31%
Mr. Peter Pannu Personal interest 1,500,000 (L) 0.04%
Peter Pannu %t 4 (BN
Mr. Cheung Kwai Nang Personal interest 250,000 (L) 0.01%
RERLEE (BN £
Mr. Hui Ho Luek, Vico Held by controlled corporation 2) 163,800,000 (L) 4.21%

(resigned on 1 July 2012) MEEFHARRE

Bl S
(R—Z——F+A—HEHD)

The letter “L” denotes a long position in shares of the Company.

Notes: Htat:

[LIRERERRIRD 2 TR »

(1) These Shares were held by Great Luck Management Limited, a (1)
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly

owned by Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson.

(2) These Shares were held by Premier Rise Investments Limited, (2)
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly

owned by Mr. Hui Ho Luek, Vico.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

FERR

At 30 June 2013, the following parties (not being Directors or chief RZ-ZZE—=F,XA=+H BREZF5LHE

executive of the Company disclosed under the section “Directors’
Interests in Securities”) had an interest in 5% or more of the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO.

Number of issued
ordinary shares

GBI 336 FMEARRRIATRIFZE M

Fraesk  THALT(ES 2R AR — &

IR ERLARAEIRITHRABRIN)
RA R Rz B dn R AR RBE B A7 7 7B 5% 3 2A
s -

Percentage of
the issued share
capital of the

interested Long/Short Company
Name of substantial shareholder #EE#ZE 2 Position in shares R NN
TERRER ERTEEREE ROZE %A ERITREABED L
Liu Xingcheng 453,237,000 Long Position 14.22%
22K S~y
Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2013, no person had ﬁ?iiﬁﬁ?&%%?\\' RZZE—=F~A=+

registered an interest and short positions in the share capital of
the Company that was required to be recorded under Section 336
of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 30 June 2013, neither the Company, nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of
the Company’s listed securities.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to date of this report, no director of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries is considered to have an
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group,
pursuant to the Listing Rules, other than those business of which
the directors were appointed as directors to represent the interest
of the Company and/or the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “SHARE OPTION SCHEME”
below, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate. None of the directors, or their spouses
or their children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for the shares of the Company, or had exercised any such rights
during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the old share option scheme and new share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 22 October 2002 and 30 July 2007
respectively, the board of directors of the Company may, at its
discretion, grant options to eligible participants to subscribe for
share in the Company. The details of share option scheme are set
out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movements of share options granted under the old
scheme and new scheme during the year are set out below:

Outstanding

fEARAEST &l
BEARASIN-_EE-_F+A=-+=H
R-ZET+F A=+ HARANZ EBRET
BIRFEREE ARRESSARIBER
SERSEERHERE  URBAQFR
17 o BEARIERT Bl 2 FE B HAN R & B T TR R B
R

AR RRBER B R et 81 2 AR
FAZEHFBEHIDOT

Outstanding

as at as at
30 June 2012 Lapsed 30 June 2013
R-E——F during R-E—=F Exercise
Date of grant ANA=+H the year ANA=+H price
& A i RAT6E RERKHK i RATEE TEE
Note (i)
logza0),
Employees:
E&:
7 June 2007 25,076,636 (25,076,636) — 0.4786
—ETLEFRALH
Grand total 27,166,356 (27,166,356) —
et
(i) The exercise prices and numbers of share options have been (i) THEELERESBECRAAREETKT

adjusted due to the completion of Open Offer.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 12 to
24 of this Annual Report.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own Code of
conduct regarding securities transaction by the Directors of the
Company. All Directors have confirmed following specific enquiry
by the Company that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 30
June 2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises two independent non-executive
directors of the Company has reviewed with the management in
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters including review of the audited financial information and
financial report for the year ended 30 June 2013.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at
date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the reappointment of JH CPA Alliance Limited
as auditors of the Company will be proposed of the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Yeung Ka Sing, Carson
Executive Director and Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 November 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY %A ®RE

BB @I F A5 R TR S
JH CPA Alliance Limited

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Birmingham International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 37 to 135, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 30 June
2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Except for the matters
described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs as
explained below, we conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY %A ®RE

Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

However, because of the matters described in the basis for

disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we were not able to obtain

sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an

audit opinion.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

1.
i)

ii.)

LIMITATION OF SCOPE

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Our reports on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the years ended 30 June 2011 and 2012 were
qualified in view of the limitations on the scope on the
royalty fee income and amount due to a former director.
With regard to the potential understatement of royalty fee
income for the years ended 30 June 2011 and 2012, the
Group as at the date of issuance of these consolidated
financial statements was still in the process of negotiating
the royalty fee income with the former sponsor for
settlement.

Any adjustments found to be necessary to the opening
balances as at 1 July 2011 and 1 July 2012 may affect the
loss, cash flows and related disclosures in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2013. In addition, the comparative figures in respect
of the net assets of the Group as at 30 June 2012, and the
profit and cash flows and related disclosures in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2012 may not be comparable with the figures for
the current year.

AMOUNT DUE TO A FORMER DIRECTOR

At 30 June 2013, the amount due to a former director,
Hui Ho Leuk, Vico (“Mr. Hui”), was approximately
HK$5,198,000 as stated in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. We were unable to obtain sufficient
information to verify the amount and repayment terms
of this amount. There were no other satisfactory audit
procedures including direct confirmation that we could
perform to satisfy ourselves as to whether this amount was
fairly stated in the statements of financial position as at 30
June 2013.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

Any adjustments that might have been found to be
necessary in respect of the above figures would have a
significant consequential effect on the financial position
of the Group as at 30 June 2013, and the loss and cash
flows of the Group for the year then ended and the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

FUNDAMENTAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING TO THE
GOING CONCERN BASIS

As explained in Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group incurred a loss attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately HK$118,760,000
for the year ended 30 June 2013, and had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$158,638,000 and a capital
deficiency of approximately HK$99,269,000 as at 30 June
2013. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the validity
of which is dependent upon future funding available.

The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that would result from the unavailability of
future funding. We consider that appropriate disclosures
have been made. However, the uncertainty surrounding the
outcome of future funding available raises significant doubt
as to the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that may be necessary should the future
funding be unavailable. We consider that appropriate
disclosures have been made in the consolidated financial
statements concerning this situation, but we consider that
this fundamental uncertainty relating to whether the going
concern basis is so extreme that we have disclaimed our
opinion.
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis
for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we do not express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as to whether
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the Company as at 30 June 2013, and of the Group’s loss
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards. In all other respects, in our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

JH CPA Alliance Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Fung Kwok Leung

Practising Certificate Number: P2357

Hong Kong
26 November 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEREREM2ERER

Eor The year ended 30 June 2013

BE—F—=FNA=F+HIFE
2013 2012
—F—= — R —&E
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mzt FET FAT
Turnover o 11 294,497 489,887
Operating expenses AT (390,915) (447,607)
(Loss) profit from operations before RETHESH 2 1 (B 18 ) B A
amortisations (96,418) 42,280
Other income HAb g A 12 7,403 3,110
Profit on sales of players’ registrations &k 8 5t 2 % A 77,125 266,693
Impairment loss on amounts due from  JEURREHE A B FIB 2 REEE
related companies 28 (1,089) (921)
Impairment loss on intangible assets B AE 2 REER 22 (3,602) (26,554)
Amortisation of intangible assets ERAERH 22 (24,669) (68,687)
Administrative and other expenses TR R EAMREZ (58,861) (50,923)
Finance costs B 35 PR AR 13 (25,421) (21,310)
(Loss) profit before taxation B Al (B8 )& 5 14 (125,532) 143,688
Income tax credit FTiSfiiK 15 4,944 —
(Loss) profit for the year REE (EE) &R (120,588) 143,688
Items that may be classified HENEH 7 EZBEFZ2ER
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on REBINMB AR RERESE
translation of financial statements of BN EERANEE
overseas subsidiaries and total other Hibh2m (%) Ka=4258
comprehensive (expenses) income for
the year (315) 311
Total comprehensive (expenses) income A& 2@ (Fsx) KRB 5E
for the year (120,903) 143,999
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: A N &IBEEANERE (EIE)
A
Owners of the Company VAN/NEIEZ SN (118,760) 136,911
Non-controlling interests FIEERR A (1,828) 6,777
(120,588) 143,688
Total comprehensive (expenses) income fEhEE (FX ) kA% ¢
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIE Z=N (119,064) 137,212
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR A (1,839) 6,787
(120,903) 143,999
(Loss) earnings per share FR(EE)BF 18
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — EARREE(BL) (3.05) 3.52
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R 8 M B AR &

At 30 June 2013
R-ZF—=F~A=+1+H

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KiaE FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB REE 21 264,119 277,389
Intangible assets | EE 22 37,896 71,257
Goodwill (RS 23 — —
Deposits, prepayments and other e BNRER
receivables H b fE RIE 27 83 5,753
302,098 354,399
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 25 2,225 2,374
Trade receivables B E SER 26 93,687 129,091
Deposits, prepayments and other Re  FENREREAMER
receivables A 27 15,705 19,350
Amounts due from related companies FEUL 8 A Rl FR I8 28 1,249 1,317
Cash held at non-bank financial RIERITESBEBEFTR RS
institutions 29 1 1
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIRS 30 49,996 72,604
162,863 224,737
Current liabilities REBEE
Transfer fee payables EffEe s 31 8,428 38,687
Trade payables FERE SRR 32 28,705 28,302
Accruals and other payables FERTFRIE K H Ath B 3R I8 33 75,324 87,296
Deferred capital grants IR B ANBE K 34 672 690
Amount due to a former director JEfRIZEEFTE 35 5,198 5,198
Deferred income EEWA 36 23,770 28,379
Borrowings BE 37 178,442 105,083
Amounts due to directors FEREE IR 38 544 —
Income tax payable FE TSR 418 418
321,501 294,053
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (158,638) (69,316)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERRBARS 143,460 285,083
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R R R &

At 30 June 2013

2013 2012
—E—=fF = ——E
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FET FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Transfer fee payables ErEes 37 = 7,316
Accruals and other payables FERTFRIE K H Ath FE - 3R I8 33 — 4,021
Deferred capital grants EIEE AN BN 34 20,600 21,838
Borrowings BE 37 2,025 7,219
Amounts due to directors BN EEHIE 38 182,808 179,819
Deferred tax liabilities BRI IB A E 39 37,296 43,236
242,729 263,449
NET (LIABILITIES) ASSETS (BB EEFE (99,269) 21,634
Capital and reserves EXREHE
Share capital N 40 38,878 38,878
Reserves (i 41(a) (138,407) (19,343)
Equity attributable to owners of the KAEHEE AEGRER
Company (99,529) 19,535
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R A 260 2,099
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCIES) (BREA) EEEE
TOTAL EQUITY (99,269) 21,634

The consolidated financial statements on pages 37 to 135 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26

November 2013, and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson

BRBLE
Director

EF

Mr. Chan Shun Wah

BRIEEE B4

Director

EF

FINEFIBELRAUBRERECESS
R-B—=F+—A=-+<BHEREET
WA TIEEREEE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 75 AR 0 3R

At 30 June 2013
R-ZF—=F~A=+1+H

2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
Notes HK$°’000 HK$'000
it FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M= BE KRE 21 722 830
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRIZKRE 24 = =
722 830
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other R& - EARIEREA
receivables JE W sk TE 27 681 696
Amounts due from subsidiaries i CNEPNEI B 24 45,376 88,140
Amounts due from related companies FEW A E A RIFRIE 28 320 1,218
Cash held at non-bank financial RIERITE BIHE
institutions Frisii & 29 1 1
Bank balances and cash RITEB RS 30 3,868 945
50,246 91,000
Current liabilities nBAE
Accruals and other payables FERTFRIE K H Ath B 3R I8 33 47,951 34,983
Amounts due to subsidiaries FER M B A R RE 24 6,812 6,614
Amount due to a former director e RIEEFTE 35 5,198 5,198
Borrowings Be 37 97,418 82,657
Amounts due to directors B ESHIA 38 544 —
157,923 129,452
Net current liabilities REBEFE (107,677) (38,452)
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRARBAME (106,955) (37,622)
Non-current liability FREBEE
Amounts due to directors EREEHE 38 5,582 5,582
NET LIABILITIES 8&FE (112,537) (43,204)
Capital and reserves EAXR B
Share capital & < 40 38,878 38,878
Reserves s 41(b) (151,415) (82,082)
CAPITAL DEFICIENCIES ey T (112,537) (43,204)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 37 to 135 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26
November 2013, and signed on its behalf by:

FEINEIBELHBERREESTER-Z
—=F+—F -+ B ERZHETIEIL G
THEERERRE

Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson Mr. Chan Shun Wah

BREEE BRIEZE L4
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERSHR

For the year ended 30 June 2013

B2 T —=FENA=FHIFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
LINCH 2N
Share Non-
Share Share option Capital Translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total interests Total
R&  ROEE BRERE HARE RERE  RTEE Ay FoRER &3t
HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
AL FAT AT AT AT FAT AL AT AT
(Note 41(a)) (Note 41(a)) (Note 41(a)) (Note 41(a))
(Witana) (hidie) (Witdne) (BiE4ie)
At 1July 2011 H-E——£rfA-8 38878 1,132,593 1497 6510 (13015) (1284,140) (117,677)  (4688)  (122,365)
Profit for the year KERET - - - = — 136911 136911 6777 143688
Other comprehensive income  REZEM2EHE
for the year — — — — 301 — 301 10 31
Total comprehensive income ~ AFE2ANERE
for the year = = = = 301 136,911 137,212 6,787 143,999
At 30 June 2012 W-E-—£XA=1R 38878 1,132,593 1,497 6510  (12714) (1147229) 19,535 2099 21,634
Loss for the year FEEEE - = = = —  (118,760) (118760)  (1.828)  (120,586)
Other comprehensive expenses  AEE £ 2R
for the year - - — — (304) - (304) M) (315)
Total comprehensive expenses  AEER AR A%
for the year - - - - (304)  (118,760)  (119,064) (1,839)  (120903)
Transfer to reserve for value of ~ EARBREEEEAZRE
share options lapsed — — (1,497) — — 1,497 — — —
At 30 June 2013 R-E-ZEAXAZTR 38878 1132593 = 6510 (13018) (1,264492)  (99529) 260 (99,269)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

2013 2012
—F—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
(Loss) profit before taxation BRE AT (E518))m A (125,532) 143,688
Adjustments for: FEE
Amortisation of intangible assets I E 24,669 68,687
Depreciation of property, plant and Yz - BERZETE
equipment 13,748 12,020
Finance costs IR IDPN 25,421 21,130
Gain on disposal of property, plant and &Y% - BE & &2
equipment (236) —
Impairment loss on amounts due from  JEWESE A FFIAZ
related companies RIEBE 1,089 921
Impairment loss on intangible asset B EEZREER 3,602 26,554
Impairment loss on other receivables H eI IE 2R EE B 624 —
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEWE 5B 2 B 1R = 209
Interest income F B (1,314) (1,984)
Profit on sale of players’ registrations HEKE M2 & F (77,125) (266,693)
Property, plant and equipment written  #i$5¥% - = MR
off 59 1,992
Reversal of impairment loss on trade JEURE 5 R 2 B E B O
receivables — (616)
Operating cash flows before HEZESEPHACLEREN
movements in working capital (134,995) 5,908
Decrease (increase) in inventories FER (M) 90 (110)
Decrease (increase) in trade FEWE 5 RF0R A (3 0)
receivables 33,275 (86,898)
Decrease (increase) in deposits, &« TRINFIE R H AR FIE
prepayments and other receivables A (3800 ) 8,319 (15,093)
Decrease in transfer fee payables EftEe B8R (37,527) (87,043)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables [EfTE ZEREIE I CRA) 910 (22,902)
(Decrease) increase in accruals and  FEETEIE F2 H b FE T3R8 GRi4> ) 320
other payables (11,312) 5,559
Decrease in deferred capital grants & IEE AN B FR > (688) (692)
Decrease in deferred income i JE AR (3,962) (8,176)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING KESERTAZREFHE
ACTIVITIES (145,890) (209,447)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HREHERER

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE—F—=F~NA=F+HIFE

2013 2012
—F—= SR — &E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Proceeds from the sale of intangible HEBFEAE ZFTSHIA
assets 83,104 355,790
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant HE&¥Z - E & &2 1S 208
and equipment 381 —
Interest received B YFILE 225 1,984
Net repayments from (advances to) FENRER(EMNBEARRIE) F5E
related companies 68 (921)
Acquisition of intangible assets Wb & (3,395) (19,089)
Acquisition of property, plant and IWEEIE - BB Rt
equipment (7,520) (966)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING RETHELEZHESFH
ACTIVITIES 72,863 336,798
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEED
Repayment of borrowings BREE (10,682) —
Interest expenses paid BEAFESH (415) (21,130)
Decrease in cash held at non-bank RIERITE BB AT
financial institutions RERD — 17,5632
Proceeds from new borrowings EE 2B HRIE 62,096 13,729
Advances from directors EERK 544 7,027
NET CASH FROM FINANCING RETHELECRERER
ACTIVITIES 51,543 17,158
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH R&KkBELZEEEER (RL)ENEEHE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (21,484) 144,509
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE ¥z B € RBEELEEEE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 72,604 (70,949)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EZR#&E 2 &£
CHANGES (1,124) (956)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FR 2 RE R RS EEER -
END OF THE YEAR, represented by RIRITHBRRIE S
bank balance and cash 49,996 72,604
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013

BE_F—=FNA=FTHIFE

1. ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS

Birmingham International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) have been suspended from trading since 30

June 2011.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate

information section to the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) is
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and for those subsidiaries
established in the United Kingdom (“U.K”) is Great
Britain Pounds (“GBP”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$")
for the convenience of users of the consolidated financial

statements as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The Company is engaged in investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 24.

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group and the Company have
applied the following new and revised HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the

“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income;
Amendments to HKAS 12

Assets; and
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures -

Transfers of Financial Assets.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

Deferred Tax - Recovery of Underlying

1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a ‘statement
of comprehensive income’ is renamed as a ‘statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’ and
an ‘income statement’ is renamed as a ‘statement of
profit or loss’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the
option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in either a single statement or in two separate but
consecutive statements. However, the amendments to
HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income to
be grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before
tax or net of tax. The amendments have been applied
retrospectively, and hence the presentation of items of
other comprehensive income has been modified to reflect
the changes. Other than the above mentioned presentation
changes, the application of the amendments to HKAS
1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” (as part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle issued in June 2012)

Various amendments to HKFRSs were issued in June 2012,
the title of which is Annual Improvements to HKFRSs (2009
— 2011 Cycle). The effective date of these amendments is
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

In the current year, the Group and the Company have
applied for the first time the amendments to HKAS 1 in
advance of the effective date (annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013).

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification to present a consolidated statement of
financial position as at the beginning of the preceding
period (third consolidated statement of financial position).
The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity is
required to present a third consolidated statement of
financial position only when the retrospective application,
restatement or reclassification has a material effect on
the information in the third consolidated statement of
financial position and that related notes are not required
to accompany the third consolidated statement of financial
position.

Except as described above, the adoption of the other new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance, financial
position and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE - F—ZFAA=HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group and the Company have not early applied the
following new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:
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Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13

HKAS 19
(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28
(as revised in 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36
Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-
2011 Cycle!

Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Liabilities'

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures®

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance’

Investment Entities?

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial Statements’
Joint Arrangements’

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’
Fair Value Measurement!

Employee Benefits'

Separate Financial Statements'

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities?

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets?

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting?

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine!

Levies?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FERFITRKETEA

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of the new and revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(b) Going concern basis

The Group incurred a loss attributable to the owners
of the Company of approximately HK$118,760,000
for the year ended 30 June 2013, and had net
current liabilities of approximately HK$158,638,000
and a capital deficiency of approximately
HK$99,269,000 as at 30 June 2013. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore that it may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liability in the normal
course of business. Nevertheless, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the next
twelve months from 30 June 2013 given that:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013

HEZ

3.

E—=FNHA="THIFEF

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

Going concern basis (Continued)

i) the directors of the Company anticipates that
the Group will generate positive cash flows
from its future operations;

) as set out in Note 47(a), subsequent to
the end of the reporting period, the Group
have raised borrowing facilities with an
independent third party to the amount of
HK$35,000,000;

iii) as set out in Note 47(d), the Group have
entered into arrangements to raise funds
which included (1) the placement of shares to
the amount of approximately HK$63,000,000
before deduction of expense, and (2) issue
of two convertible notes to the amount of
HK$50,000,000 (before consideration of the
set off of the loan noted above in (ii)) and
HK$125,000,000; and

iv) if necessary, in order to meet the Group’s
funding requirements the directors of the
Company will consider to raise funds by
way of issuing additional equity and/or debt
securities.

Accordingly, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis. Should the Group be unable to
continue to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to the consolidated financial
statements to write down the value of assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair value, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of
a subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
—=FNA=FTHIFFE

#FHz=—=F

B =

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including freehold
land and buildings held for use in the supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
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D
BE—F

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

()

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured
at the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the
asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as

their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets below).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs is based on the expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing
them to their existing location and condition. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Signing on fees and image rights

Signing on fees and image rights are recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period
of the player’'s contract. Prepayments/accruals
arising at the end of the reporting period are
recognised within prepayments, accrued income or
accruals under current assets or current liabilities,
as appropriate.

Acquired players’ registrations

Costs of acquisition of players’ registrations are
initially recognised at fair value at the date of
acquisition and amortised over the period of the
respective player’'s contract, being between one
to five years. A provision is made in accruals,
where in management’s opinion, the club is likely
to achieve a contractually agreed number of first
team appearances. Where the outcome of this
is uncertain, the maximum amount payable is
disclosed as a contingent liability.

For the purposes of impairment testing, acquired
players’ registration are classified as a single cash-
generating unit until the point at which:

° it is made clear that the player no longer
remains as an active member of the playing
squad. In these circumstances the carrying
value of the players’ registration is reviewed
against a measureable net realisable value;
or

o the carrying amount of a registration will be
recovered through sale. The measurement
of such registration is at the lower of (a) fair
value (less costs to sell) and (b) carrying
value. Amortisation of such registration is
suspended at the time of reclassification,
although impairment charges still need to be
made if applicable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(M)

1)}

Deferred income

Deferred income relates to amounts received from
sponsorship and sale of season tickets and is
released to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period to which it relates.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)}

Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, other receivables, amounts due
from related companies, cash held at non-bank
financial institutions and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1)}

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
or

° disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
trade receivables and other receivables, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
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4.

ZFENA=THIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)}

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, other receivables and amounts due
from related companies, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable, other receivable or amount due
from a related company, is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)}

Financial instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Transactions with owners

The Group applies a policy of treating loans from
shareholders as transactions between owners
in their capacity as owners. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss from the waiver of loans.
Any deemed contribution from the shareholder
arising from the waiver is recognised directly in
equity.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including transfer fee
payables, trade payables, other payables,
amount(s) due to a former director/directors and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)}

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than
in its entirety, the Group allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise, and the part it no
longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised
on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)}

(k)

U]

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated
statement of financial position comprise cash at
bank and on hand with a maturity of three months or
less. For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent consist of
cash as defined above.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts received for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of

sales related taxes.

i) Revenue from the sale of products is
recognised when the Group has delivered
and titles have passed, at which point the
customer has accepted the products and
collectability of the related receivable is
reasonably assured.

i) Season ticket and corporate hospitality
revenue is recognised over the period of the
football season as home matches are played.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

U}

(m)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

iii)

Gate receipts and other matchday revenue
are recognised as the games are played.
Prize money in respect of cup competitions
is recognised when received. Sponsorship
and similar commercial income is recognised
over the duration of the respective contracts.
The fixed element of broadcasting revenues
is recognised over the duration of the
football season whilst facility fees received
for live coverage or highlights are taken
when earned. Merit awards are recognised
only when known at the end of the football

season.

Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Services income is recognised when services
are rendered.

Capital grants

Grants and donations received in respect of

safety work and stadium developments are initially

recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position under deferred capital grants and

released to the profit or loss over the expected

useful life of the assets to which they relate. Football

Trust grants received are released to profit or loss

when the related expenditures are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Taxation
Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
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4.

E—=FNHA="THIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash
generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

(s)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating leases are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term benefits
Salaries, annual bonuses and paid annual
leaves are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payments or settlements
are deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their
present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
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!
HEZZF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

®)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Retirement benefit costs
Payments to the Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

(iii)  National insurance contribution
Contributions to the national insurance
contribution of its overseas subsidiaries as
required under respective requirement in the
U.K are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred.

Share based payments

Share options granted to employees/directors
The fair value of services received is determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the date of grant is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of
the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

i) Going concern basis

Although the Group has net current liabilities at the
end of the reporting period, the Group manages its
liquidity risk by monitoring its current and expected
liquidity requirements regularly and ensuring
sufficient liquid cash to meet the Group’s liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. The
directors of the Company consider that the Group
has no significant liquidity risk.

ii) Income tax

The Group’s tax losses are mainly derived from
its football operation in the U.K. At the end of the
reporting period, the directors of the Company
estimate whether there are any deferred tax assets
from future profits or taxable temporary differences
that should be recognised. No deferred tax assets
will be recognised if the future profit streams are
unpredictable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the

future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at

the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

)

i)

Allowances of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to the aged
inventories analysis, expected future consumption
and management judgment. Based on this review,
allowance for inventories would be made when the
carrying amount of the inventories declined below
the estimated net realisable value. However, actual
consumption may be different from estimation and
profit or loss could be affected by differences in this
estimation. At 30 June 2013, the carrying amount of
inventories was approximately HK$2,225,000 (2012:
HK$2,374,000). No allowance was recognised for
the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2013.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
and amortisation of intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
and intangible assets are amortised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The determination of the useful lives involves
management’s estimation. The Group assesses
annually the useful life of the property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets and if the
expectation differs from the original estimates,
such a difference may impact the depreciation/
amortisation in the year and the estimate will be
changed in the future period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013

HEZ

5.

E—=FNHA="THIFEF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

iii)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

When there are circumstances which indicate
that the carrying values of property, plant and
equipment may not be recoverable, the assets

may be considered “impaired”, and an impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
Under HKAS 36, assets are

tested for impairment whenever events or changes

“Impairment of assets”.

in circumstances indicate that the recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such
a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the net selling price and
the value in use. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgment relating to the level of sales

volume, selling price and amount of operating costs.

The Group uses readily available information
in determining a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of sales volume, selling price and
amount of operating costs. However, actual sales
volume, selling price and operating costs may be
different from assumptions which may require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of the
assets affected. At 30 June 2013, the carrying value
of property, plant and equipment was approximately
HK$264,119,000 (2012: HK$277,389,000),
accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$11,498,000 (2012: HK$11,498,000).

net of
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. EAS:¥HERFTE M
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION THHBEZ#)
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) BT FHBREZEERR(Z)
iv)  Impairment of trade and other receivables iv) FEREZRIRAEMERNE

The directors of the Company periodically review
its receivables to assess whether impairment exists.
In determining whether impairment should be
provided, the directors of the Company evaluated
individually each account for impairment after taking
into account the value of each client account’s
underlying collateral and the latest financial position
of those clients in default of settlement.

At 30 June 2013, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was approximately HK$93,687,000
(2012: HK$129,091,000), net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$106,000
(2012: HK$109,000).

At 30 June 2013, the carrying amount of other
receivables was approximately HK$1,000 (2012:
HK$525,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$7,112,000 (2012: HK$6,488,000).

At 30 June 2013, the carrying amount of amounts
due from related companies was approximately
HK$1,249,000 (2012: HK$1,317,000), net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$5,682,000 (2012: HK$4,593,000).
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

v)

vi)

Player transfer costs

The management of Birmingham City Plc (*BCP”),
a subsidiary of the Company, have to make certain
judgments as to whether a liability should be
recognised under the terms of the contracts with
other football clubs in respect of player transfers.
This includes whether in the managements’ opinion,
the football
club is likely to retain Championship league

at the end of the reporting period,
status in the next season. It also requires certain
judgments as to whether a player will continue
to make the contractually agreed number of first
team appearances. Based on these judgments,
management will decide on a player by player
basis as to whether the liability should be disclosed
as a contingent liability in Note 45(i) or whether
it becomes a liability and is recognised in trade
payables in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Intangible assets — acquire players’ registration
At the end of each
management of BCP considers the recoverability

reporting period, the
of the acquired players’ registration based on
current estimated fair values. The management of
BCP considers the economic life of the players’
registration to be between one to five years,
based on the respective players’ contracts. These
are reviewed annually on a player by player
basis to determine whether there are indicators
of impairment. Determining whether the players’
registration should be impaired at the end of
the reporting period is based on management’s
judgment of whether the player will no longer remain
an active member of the playing squad and an
assessment of the football club’s likeliness to retain
Championship league status in the next season.
At 30 June 2013, the carrying value of intangible
assets-player registration was approximately
HK$1,791,000 (2012: HK$30,596,000),
accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$65,167,000 (2012: HK$65,167,000).

net of
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE—F—=FNA=1HIFFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
vii)  Intangible assets — trademark

In accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”, the Group completed its annual
impairment test for trademark by comparing their
recoverable amount to its carrying amount as
at 30 June 2013. The Group has conducted a
valuation of the trademark as a cash generating
unit based on the income approach. The resulting
value of the trademark as at 30 June 2013 was
approximately equal to their carrying amount.
This valuation uses cash flow projections based
on financial estimates. Management believes
that any reasonably foreseeable change in any
of the above key assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of trademark to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. At 30
June 2013, the carrying value of intangible assets-
trademark was approximately HK$36,105,000 (2012:
HK$40,661,000), net of accumulated impairment
loss of approximately HK$507,276,000 was

recognised (2012: HK$517,332,000).

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce cost of capital. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior periods.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
includes the amount due to a former director disclosed in
Note 35, borrowings disclosed in Note 37 and amounts
due to directors disclosed in Note 38, net of cash held
at non-bank financial institutions disclosed in Note 29,
bank balances and cash disclosed in Note 30 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share

capital and reserves.
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B —_F—=F NA=1HIFEZE

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. EEEREE 2
The Group’s risk management reviews the capital AEBFFFRFTENEEBEAEER
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, @ o fEEMZ 2D  EEEZRE
the management considers the cost of capital and the B A N B EAEE 2 B o
risks associated with each class of capital. The Group REBZEBREREBRELERI5%
has a target gearing ratio of 15%-20% determined as the £ 20% - DIREEFEEER 2 L
proportion of net debt to equity. EEE °
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as RBERRZERBBELEERLOT
follows:
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Debts (Note i) 369,017 297,319
Cash held at non-bank financial institutions R 3EIRITE BIIBIIZEIE S 1) (1)
Bank balances and cash IRTTEERRKRIR S (49,996) (72,604)
Net debt 319,020 224,714
Equity (Note ii) (99,529) 19,535
Net debt to equity ratio BIEFHESER 2 L= N/A R3E A * 1,150%

Notes:

(i) Debts comprise long-term and short-term borrowings.

(D) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to

owners of the Company.

* As the Group had a net deficiency in capital at 30 June
2013, the Group’s gearing ratio as at that date were not
applicable. The directors of the Company have given
careful consideration on the measures currently undertaken
in respect of the Group’s liquidity position. The directors of
the Company believe that the Group will be able to meet
in full its financial obligations as they fall due based on the
Group’s working capital sufficiency plans as explained in

Note 3(b).

HisE -
()  EEOERBREBEE-

(if) REBEMAERRBER ARN
BARRGHE

3 HRAEER-_T—=FXA
=StTRHEEABMER A&
BERZAzERBELXRZTE
B ARAEFEEEEERF
RAKEZRBDESAHRTRZ
it - AARERARE - REX
SEEEES 7R ERE (L
MiE3(b) FTfERE) - AEMEaEE
ERETHEIRZMBEE -

F# Annual Report 2013

75



76

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

7. EWIA

Categories of financial instruments SRMIAZER
2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Financial assets TRIEE
Loans and receivables (including bank B R EWRIE (B IERTT
balances and cash) HERRRE) 144,934 203,538
Financial liabilities TREE
Quasi-equity loan EREMEEER 182,808 179,819
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHRAZ oA G 298,666 283,122
481,474 462,941

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related
companies, cash held at non-bank financial institutions,
bank balances and cash, transfer fee payables, trade
payables, other payables, amount(s) due to a former
director/directors and borrowings. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Currency risk
The Group’s main operation is in the U.K with most
of the transactions settled in GBP and does not have
significant exposure to risk resulting from changes
in foreign currency exchange rates.
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8.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The interest income derived from the Group’s
current and short-term time deposits that carry
interest at the respective banking deposit rate of the
banks and non-bank financial institutions at fixed
rates located in the U.K and Hong Kong.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to its fixed-rate borrowings (see Note 37
for details of these borrowings) for the years ended
30 June 2012 and 2013. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to its variable-rate borrowings (see Note
37 for details of these borrowings). It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of
interests so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”).

Sensitivity analysis

As of 30 June 2013, it is estimated that a general
100 basis point increase or decrease in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase or decrease the Group’s loss for the year
ended and accumulated losses by approximately
HK$31,000 (2012: HK$45,000).

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis point increase or decrease represents
directors’ assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the
next reporting period. The analysis was performed
on the same basis for the year ended 30 June 2012.

8.

cRERERE 2

(b)
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8.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Credit risk

At 30 June 2013 and 2012, the Group’s and the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group and the
Company in the event of the counterparties’ failure
to perform their obligations in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the statements
of financial position at the end of the reporting
period.

In respect of trade receivables, other receivables
and amounts due from related companies, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all receivables
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
receivable. The default risk of the industry and
country in which the receivable operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of any collateral held is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset.

At 30 June 2013, the Group has concentration
of credit risk as 36% and 93% of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers respectively.

At 30 June 2012, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables consist of a large number of customers.

8.

cRERERE®)

(c)

EERE

RZE—=FR-FT—_F
A=+8  AEBERAAFE
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8.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

At 30 June 2013 and 2012, the Group has
concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations as all of the trade receivables was from
the U.K.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are authorised banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies in Hong Kong and U.K.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the holding
company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as at 30
June 2013 as the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$158,638,000. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations and the details of which are set out in
Note 3(b).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically, borrowings with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time based regardless of the probability of
the choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates.

8.

cRERERE 2

(c)

(d)
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BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

8. ==REREEw

(Continued)
(d)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) FEBESEARGE)
The table includes both interest and principal cash ZRBEENERAEE SR
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating 2 o WHERERZEEFE -
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from BIARE BIR 2 PR ARETE
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period. RALIREHE o
Total contractual Within 1 year or More than 1 year but More than 2 years but
Carrying amount undiscounted cash flow on demand less than 2 years less than 5 years
REE BARFEBRER R-FRIEER —FABNTER RERERTER
2013 2012 2013 212 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
gk -3--f Z-8-=F _3-_f Z§-zF _E-_F Z§-=f _5-_F Z§-=fF _E-_f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
74 i3 743 i3 &R AL .2 2 &7 2
Transfer fee payables ~ EFEEE 8,428 46,003 8,428 46,503 8,428 38,687 - 7816 - -
Trade payables EfE753 28,705 28,302 28,705 28,302 2,705 28,302 - - - -
Acovalsand other  ERTRBREM
payebles 3R 75,324 91317 75,32 91317 75,32 87,29 - 4021 - -
Borrowings kE 180,467 112,302 189,721 130,001 187,665 122,216 1,833 3920 229 3,865
Amount due to a former  EfTFIES3E
director 5,198 5198 5,198 5198 5,198 5198 - = - =
Amounts due to directors B EZFE 183,352 179,819 198,462 188,531 544 - 197,018 188,531 - —
481,474 462,941 505,844 489,852 305,864 281,699 199,751 204,288 229 3,865
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9. FAIR VALUE 9. AY¥HE
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are SREEREREBEZRAFENIRE
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing T EREAZ EBEANUBRERESLE
models based on discounted cash flow analysis. DHTEETE °
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RAREERELBHEREAARZ S
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded MEENSHEBEZEREEERERSH
at amortised cost approximate to their fair values due to M WEAERNTERE o
their short-term maturities.
The directors of the Company also consider that the fair ARBEENRAE - BFE 2 RBAHMD
value of the long-term portion of liabilities approximates 2B A i G RN AN 5 A B BRI =R
to their carrying amounts as they are carried at amortised VERTE - W HRAEEES
cost using the effective interest rate method.

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. ZEEHR

Information reported to the chief operating decision
makers, who is responsible for allocating and assessing
segment performance, has been identified as the board
of directors as they collectively make strategic decision
in allocating the Group’s resources and assessing
performance. No operating segments identified by the
chief operating decision makers have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

(i) professional football operation;

(i) apparel sourcing & trading;

(iii) entertainment & media; and

(iv) investment holding

MREFSARUAEBEEROER
RBAFEEHRBEIERTE - RAED
REREFGEDBRRAZEFEEER
RECHEBIRESS - REBAE
B 2 A 2585 Bk éﬁ BIEREE
WA PRI 2 B E D IRREE ©

A EREE B R
R4S S B

Bms -
AER|ZE 8 2 A 2

74 EH /tﬂﬂ

(i) BiRRIREE

(i) IRERELES

(i) IRERERE K

i

(iv)  REER
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B2 —_F—=F NA=1HIFE
10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 2 EER @
Segment information about these reportable segments is ZENERSEZHEER 250
presented below: e
(a) Segment revenues and results (a) PDEWRER¥ES
For the year ended 30 June BZEANA=1FHILFE
Professional football Apparel sourcing Entertainment
operation & trading & media services Investment holding Total
RERHEE REFERES BERRREY RERR it

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
§-zf 5% C§-zf "§-°f C§-Zf "5-°f CB-Zf "3-2fF CE-Zf C5-°F
HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKS'000  HKSOO0  HKS'000  HKSOO0 - HKS'000  HKSOO00
.23 741 7&7 AT 747 AT 747 AT i 7T

Al

Segment revenue: Al :

External sales e 204,497 489,887 - - - - - - 294,497 489,887
Segment results NEEE (45,198) 215,140 - - - - (52) (2588) (45,280 212552
Unallocated corporate ~ AAEAZMA

income and expenses  REIX (80,262) (68,864)
(Loss) profit before Al (B18) A

taxation (125,532) 143,688

The accounting policies of the operating segments B SKE 7 st NSRBI 4 BTl 2
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies NEBSHFREMRER - DEEET A
described in Note 4. The segment results represents ) EEEP%TTBZEX$ EBEHe  EK
the results earned by each segment without FEN T RIEZREEE - A EIA
allocation of central administration costs, directors’ &E\ﬁﬁ%ﬁj{z}&z%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁxz%i
salaries, impairment loss on amounts due from R EEERRTEBEIAA
related companies, interest income and finance F)REUD @Eﬁ,}?&ﬂﬂﬁ/\*ﬁﬁiﬁ
costs. This is the measure reported to the chief ZEE R .

operating decision makers, being the directors
of the Company, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. ZEER@®
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PEEERAE
At 30 June RAA=1+H
Professional football Apparel sourcing Entertainment
operation & trading & media services Investment holding Total
RXEREE RHRERES RERERER REBR &3t
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
-2-=f 3§ C%¥-zf -5--F CE-zf -5-F CB-=f C3-f <CE-Zf CT--%
HKS000  HKSO00 ~ HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00 — HKS'000  HKSO000 — HK$'000  HK$000
7 AT 71 FAT 7T FAT 7T FAT 7T AT
ASSETS gE
Segment assets HEEE 398,139 484,892 - — - 142 722 830 398,861 485,864
Unallocated segment ~ AAEAEEE
assets 66,100 93,212
Total assets EEER 464,961 579,136
LIABILITIES 8k
Segment liabilties HREE 139,418 181500 - = 2 14 - — 139439 181523

Unallocated segment ~ #SEHERE

liabilities

Total liabilifies BlEEE

For the purpose of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segment:

° all assets are allocated to operating
segments, other than amounts due from
related companies, cash held at non-bank
financial institutions, bank balances and cash
which are not able to allocate into reportable
segments.

. all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments, other than borrowings, deferred
tax liabilities, income tax payable and
amount(s) due to a former director/directors
which are not able to allocate into reportable
segments.

424,791 375,979

564,230 557,502

RAOEEEIBRARRSE
BOEER :

. B e Uy BE E A B X
B RIERIT SR
B IRE A RRT
B kEE TN i
EREHOEI PR
BEEEIRTKE

a
DA e

. BRIEE - EEHER
B BNMEHRKE
NEESR " EEHA
TRHOIEEAN 2R
BN RBEREERD

T REENHE -
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HE-F—=FAA=tALFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. ZEER@®
(c)  Other segment information: (c) HitnEER:
Apparel sourcing Entertainment
Professional foothall operation &trading & media services Investment holding Total
BREsEs RHARRER RARRRRHE REER it
2013 012 2013 012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 012
= Sl = S = e z8-ck CFC =t SEL
HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 Hi$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000
43 i1 743 AT iz 7AT 223 7E1 223 74T
Amounts includedinthe  stASEERS
measure of segment AREEGRE
profit or loss or segment 2308
assets
Additions to non-current
assets (Note) 10,915 20,055 - - - - - - 10,915 20,065
Amorisation of infangible ~ EF/AE#
assels (24.669) (68.687) = - = - = - (24.69) (68.687)
Depreciation of property, plant 13 i
and equipment (13460 (114) = = - = (289) (95) (3T (1202)
(Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment - - - - - - 236 - 236 -
Impairment loss on intangible ~ &F
assels (3602) (26554) = - = - = - (3,602) (26.554)
Impairment loss on trade %
receivable HE - (209) - - - - - - - (209)
Profiton sales of plyers’ &L
Tegistrations il 1125 266,693 - - - - - - 71,125 266,693
Property, plant and equipment #3415 - %)
witen of B\ (59) = = = = = = (1999 (59) (1.992)
Reversal of impaiment loss on EWE 5% 25
frad receivables EERE - 16 - - - - - - - 616
Amounts reqularly provided EHREREERR
1o the chief operating ZERETH
decision makers but not  \AEEH
included in the measure ~ AEEEHEE
of segment profitor loss ~ $2318
or segment assets
Impaiment loss on other
receivables - - - - - - 624 - 624 -
Impairment loss on amounts
due from related
companies - - - - - - (1,089) (921) (1,089) (921)
Interest income FEHA 25 1,063 - - - - 1,089 il 1314 1,084
Inferest expenses HERx (8,209) (8,404) - - - - (17212) (12.726) (25,421) (21,130)
Note: Non-current assets included property, plant and it : ERBEEBEWE - M
equipment and intangible assets. BEREHEAREREE -
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# —
BE—=

ZFENA=THIFFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

11.

(d)

Geographic information

Information about the Group’s revenue from

external customers and non-current assets is

presented based on the location of operations and

geographical location of assets respectively.

Revenue from external

10.

DEER @)
(d) ih & & R

customers

For the year ended

BRAARKERAINEEP 2K
S RIERBEEZEMTID
RIBEE MR R EE 2R =2
5l o

Non-current assets

30 June At 30 June

RENBEF 2 ik FRBEE

BEANA=THLHFE RARAR=tH
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB-=F —ZT—= —E—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET FET 78T
Hong Kong B — — 722 830

United Kingdom HE
(place of domicile) (EEPTIEND) 294,497 489,887 301,293 347,816
294,497 489,887 302,015 348,646
(e) Information about major customers (e) EETEERFEF>ER

No revenue was received from customers

contributing more than 10% of the total sales of
Group for the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2013.

TURNOVER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated

customer returns, rebates and other similar allowance and

exclude value added tax or other sales related taxes and

11.

HE_Z—_FR-T =%
ANA=THLIEFE - BHERER
BEPzWmbAEEAHERE
2 10% LAE ©

LR

Wiz B Wk IR (E 2 R FEF
B WSesEFERPRE - BNk
HBEURBEL R - BT B1EE
ERREMHERRYIE - oW

are analysed as follows: S £
2013 2012
—E-= —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Television broadcasting BRER 179,828 259,020
Commercial income EEWA 63,529 116,623
Matching receipts RERA 51,140 114,244
294,497 489,887
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BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

12. OTHER INCOME 12. HflgA

2013 2012
—E—=fF —ET——F
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  HEREZHEZ
equipment W e 236 —
Interest income MEMA 1,314 1,984

Reversal of impairment loss on trade FEW B 5 R 2 B &8
receivables o] — 616

Subsidies received from the Premier BRBERSZ

League (Note) ‘B (M) 5,843 —
Sundry income IR A 10 510
7,403 3,110
Note: During the year ended 30 June 2013, the professional M : REBEE-T—=F,-A=+HL
football operation received funding from the Premier FE - BERREERE THK

League under the Elite Player Performance Plan on
fulfillment of certain term and conditions (2012: Nil).

13. FINANCE COSTS

FE) -

13. BMIEERA

2013 2012
—B-=F —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest expenses on: NTEEZFERY

— Bank loan and overdraft repayable — ARAFRNEEZ
within five years RITERRBL 78 394

— Other borrowings repayable within — AR AFERNERZ
five years EfgE 25,006 20,559
— Finance leases — BEMEL 337 357
25,421 21,310
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14. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

14. BREAT(EE)REF

2013 2012
—B—=£F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
(Loss) profit before taxation is arrived at B AT (B8 & ALk
after charging: AT B IBIEEE
Amortisation of intangible assets M EERE 24,669 68,687
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A<
— Current year — RFE 2,119 2,652
— Under-provision in prior years — BEFERETR 128 156
2,247 2,808
Cost of inventories sold (Note i) BEFEXA (M) 7,940 10,272
Cost on operating expenses (Note i) A AN ) 382,975 437,335
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BERZETE
equipment 13,748 12,020
Impairment loss on trade receivables JEW B 5B 2 B & B — 209
Impairment loss on other receivables H fth JE W R IE 2 R B B 18 624 —
Minimum lease payments under operating  &&HE N 2 WERKE
lease in respect of premises e 2,552 7,879
Foreign exchange loss (net) SNEEsIE (F58) 1,831 2,666
Staff costs (excluding director’s and chief EBIXA(TEEEERN
executive’s emoluments) FETHRABZHE)
— Wages and salaries — IERY® 248,500 277,060
— Contributions to defined contribution — AEHFRNEEZ
retirement plans ey 29,845 36,055
278,345 818, 1ldke
Property, plant and equipment written off — ##§¥% - ME L& E 59 1,992

Notes:

Cost of inventories sold represents the cost in relation to
the sales of sportswear and other accessories from the
professional football operation.

Cost of operating expenses mainly represents the salaries
and related bonus to the football players and expenses
incurred during matches of the football club.

Wit -

HEFTEXRAEHERERRE
B2 BEIRE R E MBI 2R

KERXRAETEREZN TR
B2#e MR  LARIRE

RIREHRMEEZFX °
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z

-

15.

E—=FNHA="THIFFE

INCOME TAX CREDIT

Income tax credit in the consolidated statement of profit or

15. FTIEHIER
GABREEMRE KRN S

loss and other comprehensive income represents: TR es
2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Deferred taxation — U.K RERE — HE

Current year KEE 1,618 —
Attributable to a change in tax rate i R BT 3,326 —
4,944 —

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits arising from Hong
Kong during the year ended 30 June 2013 (2012: Nil).

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the U.K are subject to
Corporation Tax in the U.K (“Corporation Tax”). No
provision has been made in respect of Corporation Tax as
these subsidiaries did not derive any assessable profits for
the year ended 30 June 2013.

No provision has been made in respect of Corporation Tax
as these subsidiaries have sufficient tax loss available for
set-off against the estimated assessable profits for the year
ended 30 June 2012.

HRAEERBE-_T—=F~A
=T HIEFEIWENEBEERRT
WA ZE—ZF  |&)  BHUEHRSE
RIS B B o

Hitp A RELS < MBI A B A
R 2RITHEE o

REBREE 2 M B AR AMN EE
CER(TEER]) - BRZEHEL
ARBE—T—=FA=1THILF
B EmESERERVEN - BT
PR EBIEHEE -

HRZEHERR AT RRARRY
BHE—T-——FXA=TRALFE
IR ERBUE R - R BB DR
TEL B -
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R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013

HEZ

15.

E—=FNHA="THIFEF

INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 15. FiSBiER @
The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the AKEEESHEEERGEEE R
(loss) profit before taxation per the consolidated statement Hih 2 ER R 2 B A (EE )R T
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as HERWT :
follows:
2013 2012
—F—= —E2——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Loss) profit before taxation B AT (B8 )& T (125,532) 143,688
Taxation calculated at respective domestic A& 7M1 EF i Rt &
statutory tax rate FiIA (24,960) 42,894
Effect of a change in tax rate MR EE) 2 8 (3,326) —
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR 2
for tax purposes MEHE 17,351 11,463
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERTBRAZ
purposes MR E (2,330) (85)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERRERATIBEEZ
recognised Mg E 8,321 =
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BABERERTIE
recognised &8 = (54,272)
Income tax credit RSBl E (4,944) —
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 39. T IRZ B HNRES9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
B2 —_F—=F NA=1HIFE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 16. EERIFETHAEY

90

EMOLUMENTS [0k
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=M2
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the FRENKENSESZ2HE
directors during the year were as follows: N
For the year ended 30 June 2013 BE-—Z2—=fX<A=t+AL
FE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions
Fees 2 2HR B Total
e BB B Ly
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET A% TET AT
Executive Directors WITES
Yeung Ka Sing, Carson EE) - 600 - 600
Peter Pannu (appointed on Peter Pannu (=T —=F
19 September 2012) METhAEZF) - 6,621 70 6,691
Ma Shui Cheong (appointed on ~ BIE(R-F——%
7 December 2012) TZRLREZE) - 412 9 421
Lee Yiu Tung (disqualified on ZRE(M=T-=%
11 January 2013) —R+—BRIEER) - 381 8 389
Hui Ho Luek, Vico HEB(R-E—C%
(resigned on 1 July 2012) +A—BEfE) — - - -
Charlie Penn (appointed on B (R=2-=%
23 April 2013) MA-+=HEZ{T) = 136 3 139
Chen Liang (appointed on BRe(R=Z—=F
6 May 2013) RANBEZM) - 184 - 184
Cheung Kwai Nang KA - 376 16 392
Chan Shun Wah FRIEzE - 447 15 462
Cheung Shing KK (RZT—=F
(appointed on 6 May 2013) AAABEZM) - 184 - 184
Wong Po Ling, Pauline FER(R=E-=%
(retired on 10 May 2013) RATEERK) — 521 13 534
- 9,862 134 9,996
Non-executive directors FUTES
Chan Wai Keung (resignedon ~~ BE#(R=FT—=F
16 October 2012) TATBE{E) 45 - - 45
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond BERHR-T—=F
(resigned on 13 May 2013) RAt+ZBEE) 124 - - 124
Gao Shi Kui (appointed BttE(R=F-=%
6 May 2013) RANBEZE) 22 - - 22
Zhou Han Ping FEF(R=Z2-=%
(disqualified on —RT—B#EEER)
11 January 2013) 64 - - 64
Wong Ka Chun, Carson Etit 144 - - 144
354 - - 354
399 9,862 134 10,395
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013

£

16.

SE—CEAA= L ALFE

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2012

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

[0 A€ P
(a) BEME(E)

16. EERFETHRAEZ

BE_2--HXA=1AL

FE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and scheme
Fees  Dbenefits in kind contributions Total
& RER 'K
ik ENER SR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT AT AT
Executive Directors BiTES
Yeung Ka Sing, Carson CEE) — 2,500 — 2,500
Yang Yue Zhou (appointed on ~ BHEM(R=F——%
30 August 2011 and resigned ~ NA=tBHEZIR
on 4 June 2012) R-E——£,xAmA
BHE) — — — —
Hui Ho Luek, Vico (resigned on  FF&BE(R-F——%
1 July 2012) t A—R&fE) = 766 12 778
Lee Yiu Tung (disqualified on FRR(N=2-=%
11 January 2013) —RA+—A%EVEER) = 780 12 792
Steven McManaman (resigned Steven McManaman
on 2 June 2012) (R=2-—£xA=AH
BHE) - 550 - 550
Wong Po Ling, Pauline TER — 598 12 610
Cheung Kwai Nang (appointed ~ RE&(R-T—=
on 14 June 2012) ~NATHEERT) = 17 — 17
Chan Shun Wah FRIEE - 441 12 453
Hua Yong (appointed on 30 ER(R-T——F
August 2011 and resigned NA=TREZAR
on 10 January 2012) RZZ-—F-A1H
BHE) = = = =
Jiang Hong Qing (appointed ZEB(R -5 ——
on 30 August 2011 and NA=THEZAR
resigned 20 January 2012) RZE-—5-A=+H
BHE) — — — -
5,652 48 5,700
Non-executive directors FHTES
Chan Wai Keung (resigned on BEB(R-T——F
16 October 2012) +A+ABEE) - 180 — 180
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond BB ER 144 — — 144
Zhou Han Ping (disqualified on ~ EEF(R_F—=F
11 January 2013) —AT—-REREER) 120 = . 120
Wong Ka Chun, Carson ERB(N=_F—=%
(appointed on 25 2012) ~NAZTRAEZRA) 2 = = 2
266 — — 266
266 5,832 48 6,146
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

16. EERFETHRAEZ
[0 A€ )

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EBEMe#E)
Peter Pannu is also the Chief Executive of the Peter Pannu [RIFFIEEZAA ]
Company and his emoluments disclosed above THEE - EXEBEZHER
include those for services rendered by him as the B 5 RITBURRIR RS 2
Chief Executive. <% -
None of the directors waived or agreed to waive REEZZT——FR=ZZT—=
any emolument paid by the Group during the years FRNAZTHLEFE  HES
ended 30 June 2012 and 2013. No emoluments ERESREREAER L
were paid by the Group to any of the directors as an ZEAME  c RBEZZT—=
incentive payment to join or upon joining the Group, FR-ZZE—=FA=+HL
or as compensation for loss of office during the FE  AEEWERERES
years ended 30 June 2012 and 2013. TS ERBGEEMARS
B MAREEE 2 8EE - 3K
TERE KRR 2 BEE o
(b) Management’s emoluments (b) EEEMS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments REBRAERZSTIA LR -

in the Group, one (2012: one) was a director of the
Company whose emoluments is included in the
disclosures above. For the year ended 30 June
2013, the remaining four (2012: four) management'’s
emoluments of the Company were as follows:

—&R(ZF-ZF: —B)E
ARAREE  HMEHER LX
ZHREEN -BE_T—=F
NAZTHLESFE  #THE
—E-—F ORA)ARRA

EEEB ST

2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Salaries, other allowances and e EMEM K
benefits in kind BEYEF 7,198 8,633
Bonuses TEAT 529 535
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 1,016 1,217
8,743 10,385
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE - F—ZFAA=HLFE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 16. EERITETHAEY

EMOLUMENTS (continued) [ A,
(b) Management’s emoluments (Continued) (b) EEHEMS(E)
No. of individuals
AE
2013 2012
—F—= —E——4F
Their emoluments fall within the ~ HEZ SN TIA TEE ¢
following bands:
Below HK$1,500,000 471,500,000 % 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 — 2,000,000 7T 2
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 /87T — 4,500,000,%7C 1 —
HK$6,000,001 — HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 /&7C — 6,500,000 87T — 1
4 4
17. STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING 17. BEIRAKN(BEEERFE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S THABZEHE)
EMOLUMENTS)
2013 2012
—2—= —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 258,761 283,158
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RURRE AT EI 5K 29,979 36,103
288,740 319,261

3R Annual Report 2013 93



94

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013

HEZ

17.

E—=FNHA="THIFFE

STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

Hong Kong

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employee’s relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 (2012:
HK$20,000). Apart from the mandatory contributions, the
employer would make monthly voluntary contributions. The
aggregate of the mandatory and voluntary contributions
made by the employer represents 5% of the basic salary
of the employees. Mandatory contributions to the plan vest
immediately. Where there are employees who leave the
Group prior to vesting fully in the voluntary contributions,
the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by
the amount of forfeited contributions. During the year
ended 30 June 2013, a total contribution of approximately
HK$238,000 (2012: HK$191,000) was made by the Group
in respect of this scheme.

U.K

The Group also participates in the National Insurance
Contribution, a defined contribution retirement scheme
organised by the government in the U.K. The Group
is required to contribute a specific percentage of the
payroll of its employees to the retirement scheme. The
contributions are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
retirement scheme. The assets and liabilities of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. During the year
ended 30 June 2013, a total contribution of approximately
HK$29,741,000 (2012: HK$35,912,000) was made by the
Group in respect of this scheme.

17.

EITRAN(BREERTE
TBRABEZHME)#)

&8
REBBREEBCRHIMERE ST E
5B )3 7 & SR 17 1601 ) 22 &6 B
NERZEBHTARGBIEATE S
El([aEeE ] wEBELTEAR
HBYSEATE 2 REHEIEK
FTEl - RIERTESHE - BERERE
8% 8 AR ESBEBEWA Z5%M%
FTEIEE MR - S AMBAKRALRA
25,000 0(=Z — =4 : 20,0007
TT) o BRog Bl RIN - BEATE A
1B BREE R o BEEL 228614
kAR EREEEEEELATFESZ
5% © &t & 2 o8 i 1 51 T B B 57
B - iR ER BREEREERE
BEHASEE  AEBEEGZHAER
WEMHR 2z 2 EMAK - REE=
T =—FXNAZTHLFE  ~&EH
BLEZ T BI1E B FRARRE 4 238,000 7%
TT(=ZZF——4% : 191,000 7T) °

KE

AREBNR2EE TR FER 2 EREHE
FORINGT BB RIRBE R - REE A
REEEIEZIEERA D L MZERIR
FTEIEER - KB EZBRIRGT 8248
A RZA T NN IB=SIER -
ZtEzEERABNEASE A
EXBBEIREE - WFERR—EE
VEBES MNEBE-T—=F5-A
=tTRIEEE  RNEBFUEEE
R ARRE4) 29,741,000 8 T(=F
— % : 35,912,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013

£

18.

19.

20.

FSEAASFAILEE

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss (2012: earnings) per share
is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$118,760,000 (2012:
profit for the year of approximately HK$136,911,000) and
the weighted average number of 3,887,753,400 (2012:
3,887,753,400) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year
ended 30 June 2013 is the same as the basic loss per
share because the Company had no dilutive potential
shares.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 30 June 2012 does not assume the conversion of
the Company’s outstanding share options because the
exercise price of those share options was higher than the
average market price for the shares.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 30
June 2013 (2012: Nil), nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
includes a loss of HK$69,333,000 (2012: HK$51,266,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

18.

19.

20.

BR(EE)EF
BREAER(ZZ——F: BF)
TWRAFEZANDRHEE ABEE
18 #7118,760,000% (= T — =
F: F E & M #136,911,000%5
T0) RENE AT E RN
#3,887,753,400 % (= T — — & :
3,887,753,400 f% )5t & -

AR AR AN B B AR - T
HEE-F-=F~A=TRLFE
2 5 1 1 6 5 1R B 45 R 2 K 5 98 48
[@ o

AR ALRAT IR 2 T (S
B2 FHTE - S ERE-T
——ERAS+ALEEZ SRES
B W AR WAL S -

BB
HE_ZT—=F"AZ=Z1+HLEE
TERMIBERE(ZE—ZF -
) B REHI R AR I R (E
BB -

EARBEEANEBEEREE
&iE
RATEBEABREARFEFEBRRE
E518 69,333,000 B L(ZE — =4 :
51,266,000 7T ) * BERARQ A Z 8
BmERPRIE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 21. ¥¥ - BMERRE
The Group AEH
Freehold land Furniture
and buildings Leasehold and Office Motor
XAZE  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles Total
THEEF  HENEEE FREEE BAERME RE @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& AT & A1 &L FET
COST A
At 1 July 2011 RZZ——%t+A-A 297,558 2,845 32,419 895 2,697 336,414
Exchange realignment B 3% (8,459) — (912) — (61) (9,432)
Additions NE 170 477 254 65 — 966
Disposals e - - = = (12) (12)
Written off during the year 43
(Note (i) (Wit (i) = (2,845) — - = (2,845)
At 30 June 2012 RZF-—%5:F=1H 289,269 477 31,761 90 2,624 325,091
Exchange realignment B { 3% (7,575) — (816) — (54) (8,45)
Additions AE 4,600 180 2,488 — 252 7,520
Disposals e — — (285) — (755) (1,040)
Written off during the year /s
(Note (ii)) (Wit (i) - = (17) (152) = (169)
At 30 June 2013 R=Z-=F:A=TH 286,294 657 33,131 808 2,067 322,957
ACCUMULATED ZIHTERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2011 R=E—%+h-A 26,243 568 9,018 504 1,432 37,765
Exchange realignment B} 3% (812) - (361) — (45) (1,218)
Provided for the year ~ REFEHE 4,015 379 6,666 171 769 12,020
Eliminated on disposal &R - = = = (12) (12)
Eliminated on written off M5B ¥i5 = (853) = = = (853)
At 30 June 2012 R-E-—&£5:A=1H 29,446 9% 15,323 675 2,164 47,702
Exchange realignment B X% (992) = (570) = (45) (1,607)
Provided for the year ~ AEER#A 7,155 131 6,175 84 203 13,748
Eliminated on disposal ~ HEBHHE - — (274) — (621) (895)
Eliminated on written off ~ #i34Es i3 — = (11) (99) = (110)
At 30 June 2013 RZF-=%5:F=1H 35,609 225 20,643 660 1,701 58,838
CARRYING VALUE BEFE
At 30 June 2013 R=E-=%;A=1H 250,685 432 12,488 148 366 264,119
At 30 June 2012 R=F-—%,A=1H 259,823 383 16,438 285 460 277,389
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013

BE

21.

SE—CEAA= L ALFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Freehold land
Buildings

Not depreciated

2%, or over the terms of the
leasehold land if shorter

20%, or over the terms of the
lease if shorter

Furniture and fixtures 20%

Office equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 15% to 33%

Leasehold improvements

The freehold land and buildings represents the stadium
and the training pitch situated in Birmingham, U.K. For
the purpose of impairment review, the freehold land and
building was revalued at its opening market value as at 30
June 2013 by reference to a valuation carried out by Roma
Appraisal Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group. Based on the result
of the valuation report, no impairment loss was recognised
for the year ended 30 June 2013 (2012: Nil).

The freehold land and buildings were pledged to a bank to
obtain bank loan (Note 37(i)).

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the net carrying
values of the Group’s leasehold improvements, furniture
and fixtures and office equipment amounting to
approximately HK$59,000 (2012: HK$1,992,000) were
written off, which was mainly due to the termination of a
rental agreement with the landlord in respect of a leased

property.

ME - BERRE

Bt

)

(in)

(iii)

LW BERRERE IR
BAEA T FERAEIFE

KAEELH FTHE

BT 2% RHEE T FH
()

HEMERE 20%HHEFH
()

GRREE  20%
WRERME  20%
HE 15% % 33%

KA EERE A i R F IR N E
BRI 2 85 8 RIS - 3R
BRF TS - KAEE L RE
FLERAREE N EFEZ BT
AERBEGEMESERTE
ERARETZEERENR =S
—=FANA=tAZAMMESE
o RBEBEREZAER  BZE
T =FXNA=ZTHLEER
BEANEER(ZZ—ZF:
) o

KAFKEL I RETEEM TR
TABSIRITER (M 37()) -

RBE=_T—=F~A=+AH1t
FE AKBEZHAEMERS -
BRMREEARBAZREZER
HFEX59,0008 (=T —=
£ : 1,992,000 7T ) B #EE - Ty
TERREXFREEWET L
ZHEBHBRIEFTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%A,\ﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁi

For the year ended 30 June 2013

F=

21.

—=FNA=FHILFE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 21. ¥ - BERZE R
(Continued)
The Company AT
Leasehold Furniture and Office
improvements fixtures equipment Total
HENEEE BRREE BAERE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
COST ﬁEZF
At 1 July 2011 —2—%tHA—-H 2,845 365 743 3,953
Additions /mii 477 — 65 542
Written off during the year FERMHE
(Note) (Hizt) (2,845) - — (2,845)
At 30 June 2012 W=—ZE——F~A=+H 477 365 808 1,650
Additions NE 180 — — 180
At 30 June 2013 —=FxA=1H 657 365 808 1,830
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 25t EKRIE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2011 —E——%+tA—H 569 73 436 1,078
Provided for the year $¢§%ﬁ 380 73 142 595
Eliminated on written off bkl apcl (853) — — (853)
At 30 June 2012 —ERA=TH 9 146 578 820
Provided for the year REEEE 131 73 84 288
At 30 June 2013 =F&ARA=TH 227 219 662 1,108
CARRYING VALUE REEE
At 30 June 2013 ZZ-=%:A=1H 430 146 146 722
At 30 June 2012 “#XA=+H 381 219 230 830
Note: During the year ended 30 June 2012, the net carrying Hiet: RBEE=-T——F~A=+H

values of the Company’s leasehold improvements

and furniture and fixtures amounting to approximately
HK$1,992,000 (2013: Nil) were written off, which was
mainly due to the termination of a rental agreement with the

landlord in respect of a leased property.

LEFE ARRAZHEEMER
A R REE 2 FREFEL

1,992,000/ (=

T_=&:B)

BEME HEERREXEFE
EME N 2 HEBEK LT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2013
B —_F—=F NA=1HIFEZE

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 22, BEEE
The Group AEE
Player Backlog
registration contract Trademark Total
REZM BEEH 5] @zt
(Note (ii)) (Note (iii) (Note (iv))
(Hrz (i) (B (iii) (Hiz(iv)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET T
COST D%
At 1 July 2011 RZE——FtA—H 426,165 140,903 574,320 1,141,388
Exchange realignment B X A% (12,155) — (16,327) (28,482)
Additions NE 19,089 — — 19,089
Disposals & (93,507) — — (93,507)
At 30 June 2012 RZE——FA=1H 339,592 140,903 557,993 1,038,488
Exchange realignment B 5 % (8,930) — (14,612) (23,542)
Addition NE 3,395 — — 3,395
Disposals & (55,025) — — (55,025)
At 30 June 2013 RZZE—=F~A=+H 279,032 140,903 543,381 963,316
ACCUMULATED R EHERAE
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2011 RZZ——FtA—H 221,672 140,903 532,469 895,044
Exchange realignment B % A% (7,917) — (15,137) (23,054)
Provided for the year REEEE 68,687 — — 68,687
Impairment loss recognised ERRREESE 26,554 — — 26,554
At 30 June 2012 RZZE——F~A=+H 308,996 140,903 517,332 967,231
Exchange realignment fE X % (7,378) - (13,658) (21,036)
Provided for the year AEERERE 24,669 = — 24,669
Eliminated on disposal HER L (49,046) = — (49,046)
Impairment loss recognised BRRAEERE — — 3,602 3,602
At 30 June 2013 RZZE—=F~A=+H 277,241 140,903 507,276 925,420
CARRYING VALUE REFE
At 30 June 2013 RZZE—=F~A=+H 1,791 - 36,105 37,896
At 30 June 2012 R-E——%xA=+AH 30,596 - 40,661 71,257
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE—F—=FNA=1HIFFE

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
The Group (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iif)

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Backlog contracts 1 year

Players’ registration based on respective players’
contracts terms from
1-5 years

Trademark Not amortised

The player registration is considered to have a useful life
ranging from 1 to 5 years and is tested for impairment at
the end of the reporting period.

Any players whom Birmingham City Football Club Plc
(“BCFC”"), a subsidiary of the Company, do not consider
to be a long term part of the First Team squad and who
will therefore not contribute to future cash flows earned
by BCFC are assessed for impairment by considering
the carrying value with BCFC’s best estimate of fair value
(being post year-end sales proceeds or expected sales
proceeds) less costs to sell. During the year ended 30
June 2013, the directors have made an impairment loss of
Nil (2012: HK$26,554,000) against this category of players
and are satisfied that this impairment is adequate.

Backlog contract represents the contract signed between
BCFC and the Football Association Premier League Limited
(“FA Premier”) which BCFC will have the right to receive an
annual income from FA Premier in relation to the income
arrived from television broadcastings, sponsorships, merit
amount determined by the final position at the end of the
premier league season and the facility fees determined
by the number of the matches being broadcasted by FA
Premier. The backlog contract is signed on a yearly basis
and will be renewed before the premier league season starts
each year and hence, the amount of backlog contract was
fully amortised during the 15 months ended 30 June 2010.

The trademark was acquired in the business combination
of BCP, which is considered to have an indefinite useful
life and was tested for impairment as at the end of the
reporting period.

According to the valuation report prepared by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of
professional valuers not connected with the Group, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$3,602,000 was
recognised for the year ended 30 June 2013 (2012: Nil)
because the recoverable amount of the trademark with
reference to the value in use. The valuation was prepared
based on the income approach.

BEEE®)
AEE ()
Hiat -

) BN BEERIT

BEAH 1F
BREHM  REAEREZANF
15t E

Gl TTHEH

(if) KEFEMZ Al e A FHER BN
FAELF WS HREITH
BRI -

R A A BT B A B Birmingham
City Football Club Plc([BCFC)
FrEABRE—GHKEMISYH
BCFCHEN Z AR\ & R EH R
R 2R EHETRETS 7
X AREERAEEBCFCEH AT
BE(ENF4R#%ZHEMBHRIER
TEHHE RS RIB) R E KA 2
BEHT - RBEE-ZT—=F~
A=1+HILLEE EFWEMK
R EHERASE(ZT—=
4 : 26,554,000 7T ) + I {5 4
LLREE R #M

(i) & B & #) $§BCFC £ Football
Association Premier League
Limited ([FA Premier|)%&sT 2 &
#) - BCFC # & # 8 FA Premier
MK B BRERE BB - £ (R
%tﬂwﬂ’ém?ﬁ%ZEﬁ HF%#

) R&EE R (R FA Premier &
BHEHAET) 2 WARRE
BWA - BRENRFETRR
BEABHMRETRBAER - K
BEEHAZEEREBEE=T—F
FRA=ZTHILETAEEARZE

(iv) EIETIRBCPZ ¥ % & ff Ik
B WEARERAERES -
W R AR ETTREREA, -

$ETF§1$’§IM$E§LZ§%2
EXMHERBEREFHEERA
AmAZHERS  REBERLY
3,602, OOO)%T_I:EEA@Z;?_E——
FRA=ZTRHLEFERR(Z
——F:F). ﬁtﬁmﬁé%%ﬁﬁﬁ
EEZERATWE SR -
BEIRREERERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFE

23. GOODWILL 23. BE
HK$'000
FAET
Cost AR
At 1 July 2011, 30 June 2012 and 2013 RZE—F+tA—H —T——FK
—E-—=FA=1H 22,185
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE
At 1 July 2011, 30 June 2012 and 2013 RZE—F+tA—RH ZT—=FK
—E—=%XXA=1+H (22,185)
Carrying amount AREE
At 30 June 2012 and 2013 R_E——FR-_F—=F-A=1+H —

The goodwill is allocated to a single cash generating unit
that is the professional football operation. Goodwill was
fully impaired during the year ended 30 June 2011.

FEDOEERERIREEZE R
TELEMN HEBERBE_T——
FRA=ZTBILFEZEURE °

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 24. RHBRARZKRE
The Company

¥ N
2013 2012
—_2—= —E——_F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR » LA 965,583 965,583
Less: Impairment loss recognised J - BIERREEE (i) (965,583) (965,583)
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE WS BT /BB A ) 3R I8 (ii) 73,732 108,859
Less: Impairment loss recognised J - BIERIREEE (iii) (28,356) (20,719)
45,376 88,140
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET BT /B A R 3kI8 (ii) (6,812) (6,614)
38,564 81,526
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

24.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

At 30 June 2013, an accumulated impairment (i)
loss on investment costs of approximately
HK$965,583,000 (2012: HK$965,583,000) was noted

because the related recoverable amounts of the

investment costs with reference to the net assets

value of the respective subsidiaries were estimated

to be less than their carrying amounts.

Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries are unsecured, (i)
interest free and repayable on demand.

24. RMIBATZRE #)

RZT—=F X A=+H8"
#7965,583,000/8 Jo(= =
— — %F : 965,583,000 7T )
ZRERAKRFREEREE T
®R RERZEXWEAR]
ZEEFEZIREKANZIEA
A E e EFHERERE
(=

FE W (FE A ) MY 18 & R] 2 53R
REER  RERBERERE
7= o

Movements in impairment loss: (iiy  REEEZEE :
The Company
N

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At the beginning of the year REH) 20,719 20,719
Recognised during the year F AR 7,637 —
At the end of the year A 28,356 20,719

During the year ended 30 June 2013, an impairment
loss of approximately HK$7,637,000 (2012: Nil) was
recognised because the recoverable amount was
estimated to be less than their carrying amounts
and the possibility of the recovery was remote.

HE-_ZT—=F~A=Z+
BIEFERN  REBRBLY
7,637,000 (= T — =
F:E)ETFHER REARKH
e & EEFHEREREER
WeEl 2z ATREHE T K o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013

HEZ

24.

25.

E—=FNHA="THIFEF

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(iv) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

24. RMIBATIZRE (&)

as at 30 June 2013 are as follows: Bz xEWBARFEM TR
Country of Group’s
incorporation effective
and operation  Particulars of issued interest
Name of company SRR and paid-up capital KEEZ  Proportion of ownership  Principal activity
NAER g2Ex BEARBEEAFE ERER BEELA TEEH
directly Indirectly
B 5E-3
Birmingham City Plc UK (GBP8,505,000 ordinary 96.58% 96.58% — Professional football operation
HE 8,505,000 £ L @R BERnesE
Birmingham International ~ HK HK$1 ordinary 100% 100% — Entertainment & media
Management Limited &/ 1B EBER services
RARBHERERAA RE T IRER MRS
Dollar Concept British Virgin US$1 ordinary 100% 100% — Apparel sourcing and trading
International Limited Islands (“BVI") 1ETE &M (overseas based)
EERAHS([E TREFRERES (850
ERLES))
Birmingham International ~ BVI US$1 ordinary 100% 100% — Investment holding
Consultant Limited RBRAEE  1ETEER RERR
Note: The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company Hit - L%‘%WE$XJZIE%%$¢
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected E%éﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁgﬁéﬁﬁi
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of ;giﬁﬁﬁ ZAR ﬂMﬁf%% ﬂiff
the net assets of the Group. To give details of the other tﬁ%ﬁ}ﬂéﬁ%{ﬁﬂ?%@ﬂZaﬂﬁg
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in BHRIBBRITE ©
particulars of excessive length.
i
INVENTORIES 25. 78
The Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFETT
Finished goods and goods for sale LK on N 85 o 2,225 2,374
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES PR E 5 RR X
The Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—=f —E=——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables EUE ZEER 93,793 129,200
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BRI EE R (106) (109)
93,687 129,091

(i) The average credit period of the Group’s trade
receivables is 90 days (2012: 90 days) and
represents solely from the professional football

operation.

Trade receivables from the sale of player’s

registrations are received in accordance with the

terms of the related transfer agreement. The Group

does not hold any collateral over these balances.

(i) The aging analysis of trade receivables based on

invoice date net of impairment loss is as follows:

(if)

REBERE S ERZTFY
FEEHARIOR(ZZ—=4F:
90K) - WERBBETKE
E °

HERE M2 RUYE 5 8RR
THIRIE AR RR S R 175 58 2 1R
HR o ZN5R [ 30 4 A AL 5 A BRET
BEMERR

R B B ERYE R R E S
182 EIE BN BB
T :

2013 2012

—_2g—= —E——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 30 days 30 KA 84,226 118,278
31 to 90 days 31 290K 676 836
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 71 678
181 to 365 days 1812 365X 8,714 9,299
93,687 129,091
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continuea)
(iii) The movements in impairment loss during the
year including both specific and collective loss
components are as follows:

26.

EWE SRR &)
(i) FRZREBEZEH(2IERE
BIRERA BT

The Group
FEH

2013 2012
—E—=F —T—CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At the beginning of the year REF] 109 524
Exchange realignment bE 56, A B (3) (8)
Recognised during the year FRNER — 209
Reversal during the year FRHEE = (616)
At the end of the year REK 106 109

At 30 June 2013, the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately HK$106,000 (2012: HK$109,000)
were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that none of the related
receivables is expected to be recovered. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

R=ZZT—=FA=+H x&EEZ
JE UL E 5 BR 5% 49 106,0008 (= =
— =4 : 109,000 7T) Ty E B B &
BRME - BEBIREZ EUER KT
BHMBR#EE s EPAEMR - MERERT
ETEEAMER RIS RE - &
SEVEREEERTATMAMER

o
on °
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

At 30 June 2013 and 2012, the analysis of trade
receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

26. EWE SRR

REZTB—=FR=_T—_F
A=+H ' KX RBEZ
FEURE SRR DITIAT

Past due but not impaired

BEHEARE
Neither past
due nor Less than
Total impaired 60 days 61-90 days  91-365 days
& ARERKAE HR60K 61290k  91Z365%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT TAT AT AT
At 30 June 2013 RZE-=F A=1H 93,687 84,902 71 — 8,714
At 30 June 2012 R-Z—-%,xA=1H 129,091 119,114 436 582 8,959

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

AEPRRREZ EKE FER
RERBEZEP  WEL B
HAR SRACER

EEHERBEZEREZK
RERETRAKERER T
EECHCBILEF - REBG
EEE - BEEMREHEARY
SHEMREHIRRERYE - oM
REEERUEBEAEH NG
MR E R BB © AR5
% 20 488 L S A R B (TR
Hm o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFE

27. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND

27. e  AAREREME

OTHER RECEIVABLES WK IE
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E--F —E-—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FEx FET
Other receivables H o e U 5008 7,113 7,013 — —
Less: Impairment loss i BRERREEE
recognised (Hiz2 ()
(Note (i) (7,112) (6,488) — —
1 525 — —
Deposits and prepayments &% MFaff7E 15,787 24,578 681 696
Less: Prepayments — B BRRIE —
non-current FnE
(Note (ii)) (Hi72 (i) (83) (5,753) — =
Amounts shown in MBEEMREER
current assets 15,705 19,350 681 696
Notes: Kt -
(i) The movements in the impairment loss on other receivables (i) FERNE A EWRIE 7 BIEEERE
during the year are as follows: T :
The Group The Company
rEE P NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=f —T-CZF —E-=F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET
At the beginning of REH)
the year 6,488 6,488 — -
Recognised during FNTER
the year 624 — — —
At the end of the year RER 7,112 6,488 — =
During the year ended 30 June 2013, an impairment loss of BE_ZE—=F"A=1+HILF
approximately HK$624,000 (2012: Nil) on other receivables EA - H e WK IE 2 R E & 18
was recognised. The Group has individually assessed all #1624,000% JT(=Z T — = & :
other receivables and provided impairment for the amounts T)E TR - A5EE ERIFEE
that are considered not recoverable. BT A H & WK IE - I BE 4R AR 1B
NeT el 2 & FEIR AR (E o
(ii) Included in prepayments are amounts of approximately (ii) R=ZTE—=F"A=+RH"H#E

HK$83,000 as at 30 June 2013 (2012: HK$5,753,000)
relating to sign-on fees for purchases of the players which
are classified as non-current.

R IB B HE 483,000 T(=ZF
— — % :5753,000/87T) r B K
PERIRBZBEREBENE
}Eﬁ °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED 28. EWEERTRE
COMPANIES
Details of amounts due from related companies disclosed R A B K HI 5 16 1B 151 & 2 FE UK
pursuant to Section 161B of the Company Ordinance are FE A FIFRIEFBRAT ¢
as follows:
The Group rEE

Maximum amount outstanding
during the year
FRAEERSEHE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B—=F T _—4F ZB-=HF T _—F
Notes ~ HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Bz FET TETT FET BT

Skyline Global Skyline Global

Investment Limited Investment Limited

(“Skyline”) ([Skylinel) (i) 929 — 929 —
Sing Pao Media R EEEE

Enterprises Limited BRAF

(“Sing Pao Media”) (TRCERELE ) (ii) 5,682 4,593 5,682 4,658
Sing Pao Newspaper B R R F

Company Limited BRAF]

(“Sing Pao Newspaper”) ([BFRFRT]]) (iii) 320 1,317 320 1,317

6,931 5,910

Less: Impairment loss & - EFERBIE
recognised B8 (iv) (5,682) (4,593)
1,249 1,317
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFE

28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED
COMPANIES (continued)

The Company

28. FEWEENTFIEw)

AATF

Maximum amount outstanding

during the year

FRAKREERSSHE
2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=F T ZEB-=F —=—=F
Notes  HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaF FET FET FET FET
Sing Pao Media SRS R (i) 5,682 4,593 5,682 4,658
Sing Pao Newapaper R R T (iii) 320 1,218 1,218 1,218
6,002 5,811
Less: Impairment loss &l : EHERRBIE
recognised [E518 (iv) (5,682) (4,593)
320 1,218

Notes: Htat -

(i) The directors of the Company considered Skyline is related (i) RRREERBAREARBI T
company of the Group as Ma Shui Cheong, an executive EES5IHER Skyline PR B
director of the Company has beneficial interests in Skyline. Wk © W Skyline BANE B 2 BF&E
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on NA e ZAEREERE  2ER
demand. AEEKEE -

(i) The directors of the Company considered Sing Pao Media, (ii) ARBEERA @ KREHE(—H
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, but trading of its RELZFr Ez A Al tHEERR D
shares have been suspended since 28 April 2005, and its EE-ZTRAFWNA=Z+NABE
subsidiary, Sing Pao Newspaper (together referred to as TIEEE)REME A R RERT
the “Sing Pao Group”) are related companies of the Group (FBEKRER ) IAEEZ
as Yeung Ka Sing, Carson, a substantial shareholder of ENE RERARRIZEE
the Company is also the key shareholder of the Sing Pao BERERBAAEXFEEZEE
Group. fRER -
Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson, the Chairman and executive RRRZERFENTEFLRH
directors of the Company, has beneficial interests in Sing RERKBRERTHERESE
Pao Media. The amount is unsecured, interest bearing at i o AR BB - 1Z12% 5t
12% and repayable within one year. BERER—FANEE -

(iii) Sing Pao Newspaper is an indirect subsidiary of Sing (iii) P 3 R T 4 P HR 18 4% 7 fd 32 T B

Pao Media. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

DA ZRASEER  RER
TAREREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED
COMPANIES (continued)

28. FEWEENTFIE#)

Notes: (Continued) Htaz - (&)
(iv) Movements in impairment loss during the year are as (iv) FRZBEEBESHNT -
follows:
The Group The Company
REHE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B—=£ —ET——F —E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At the beginning of REH)
the year 4,593 3,672 4,593 3,672
Recognised for the year ANEEWHER 1,089 921 1,089 921
At the end of the year RELR 5,682 4,593 5,682 4,593
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ARARIEERA » Y6 5,682,000
possibility of the recovery of HK$5,682,000 (2012: BIL(ZZT — =4 : 4,593,000/
HK$4,593,000) is remote, and an impairment loss of TC)ZFRIBZ AT REER R - BUREL
HK$1,089,000 (2012: HK$921,000) was recognised during EZT—=FXA=THILFE
the year ended 30 June 2013. A B R %, 18 /&5 18 1,089,000 7 7T
(ZZ—=% :921,000/%7T) °
/4= = =+
29. CASH HELD AT NON-BANK FINANCIAL 29. RIFRITERMMBAMITR
INSTIUTIONS &
The Group and the Company FEBMREAF
Cash held at non-bank financial institutions carry interest at RIFBTEBMEBAFRESEF
0.001% per annum (2012: 0.001%). A £0.001%sF B(ZF — = &
0.001%) °
30. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 30. RITHEBRERE
The Group and the Company FEBMRAEAF

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances.

Most of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars whereas the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents in the U.K are mainly
denominated in GBP.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates.

RERMBRRRRFEEEDRER
msr BekRSEFEHBEERAE
KARTTHERR ©

RRBZRADBEEMEEEEER
NABTREN  MARBEREE 2R
SRR EERBEIBURERE

A
\/ o

iz

P17 ST B RITFRAE LD
T BRERF 2, o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR YA

For the year ended 30 June 2013
B —_F—=F NA=1HIFEZE

31. TRANSFER FEE PAYABLES 31. ENEgE
The Group The Company
KEE RAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—F—= —E——-F ZEBE-=F Z—T—_F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr FET FET
Transfer fee payables ENEgE
— Within one year — —FR 8,428 38,687 — —
— Due after one year — —F1& 55 — 7,316 — —
8,428 46,003 — —
All transfer fee payables are stated at amortised cost that FrERNEeRIZENTEES 2#
approximately equal to the fair value. SHAANTIBR o
32. TRADE PAYABLES 32. BERHESERM
An aged analysis of the trade payables is as follows: ENESERZERERATAT
The Group The Company
KEE RKAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E——-F ZEBE—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Within 30 days 30K~ 15,371 15,007 — —
31 to 90 days 31290k 2,016 2,253 — —
91 to 180 days 91 & 180K 597 351 — -
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 10,721 10,691 — —
28,705 28,302 — =

The Group normally receive credit periods from suppliers

averaging 90 days.

/Hﬂo

AEE-—RAKEHREGFHIORZEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

33. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 33. EBrtREREMENRE
The Group The Company
AEH ¥ NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—F—= —ET—= —EB—=F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Accruals (Note i) FEETSRIE (Mt i) 50,579 44,236 47,951 34,983
Other tax and social H R IE &
security HERE 20,666 43,060 — —
Agent’s fee payables ERELEANER
(Note ii) (HTaE i) 4,079 4,021 — —
75,324 91,317 47,951 34,983
Less: Amount due after JE N —FREH
one year RIE
— Agent’s fee — REANER
(Note ii) (Htazii) — (4,021) — —
Shown in current RRE A BT~
liabilities 75,324 87,296 47,951 34,983
Notes: Kt -

Included in accruals are amounts of approximately
HK$4,996,000 (2012: HK$4,806,000) relating to accrued
directors’ remuneration.

ii. At 30 June 2013, included in other payables represents the
agent’s fee paid for the purchase of football players during
the year and of Nil was due after one year according to the
transfer agreement of players (2012: HK$4,021,000). The
directors of the Company consider the amounts in accrual
and other payables, both current and non-current, were
approximate to their fair value as at 30 June 2012 and
2013.

B RBEEEHRRFTESHE
2 7K TE #74,996,00058 (= &
—— 4 14,806,000/87T) °

R-ZTE—=F~A=1+8  &H#
ENREREFAREERESX
NzEe NER - &R THBI
BrEeRin—F/IHB(=Z
— — 4 : 4,021,000/ 75) ° AA
RIEERA BB KRIEREEST
RIEREMEMNFIBHEER =
E—_—_FER-_T—=F~A=1+
HZ AFERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFE

34. DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANTS 34. EEEREB
The Group
rEHE
2013 2012
—E—=F —T—CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Amount to be released within one year B —FE B[O 2 I8 672 690
Amount to be released after one year R —F 14 B R 2 378 20,600 21,838
21,272 22,528

Deferred capital grants relate to the redevelopment of the
football stadium located in Birmingham, U.K. The grant has
been treated as a deferred grant and is being amortised in
line with the depreciable assets to which it relates.

35. AMOUNT DUE TO A FORMER 35.

DIRECTOR

The Group and the Company

The amount is due to Hui Ho Luek, Vico, a former executive
director of the Company who resigned on 1 July 2012.
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

BB AR BB ERMNEE
BAHZ RHISERM - BRIDRIEE
R AEREAMZATHERE
[Fl 2 3

R ES I

AEBRAAT
ZREARNARRAMITES L
BE(R=T—=—F+tA—ABT)ZXK
1B ZHERERNF  REREARE
RIEE o

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

36. DEFERRED INCOME 36. EILEWA
The Group REE
The movements of deferred income for the years ended 30 BREWARBE-_T—Z—FR_F
June 2012 and 2013 were as follows: —ZFEXNAZTRIFEEZEFHIT
Matching Commercial
receipt income Total
REWA BEEWA et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 July 2011 R-B——&+A—H 35,016 2,609 37,625
Exchange realignment PE i A% (838) (66) (904)
Addition during the year  FRKRE 26,740 2,088 28,828
Recognised as revenue FANER A=
during the year (84,593) (2,577) (87,170)
At 30 June 2012 R-ZEE——F,xA=+H 26,325 2,054 28,379
Exchange realignment PE 3 FA 2 (590) (57) (647)
Addition during the year  FRARE 22,359 2,167 24,526
Recognised as revenue  FRER AR
during the year (26,424) (2,064) (28,488)
At 30 June 2013 RZZE—=F"A=1+H 21,670 2,100 23,770
37. BORROWINGS 37. &8
The Group The Company
AEE AKAFE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—ZE—= —T—_—F =ZB—=HF —ZT—_F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET F#ET FET
Secured bank loans BEPBITER
(Note i) (HizEi) 3,137 4,506 — —
Unsecured — other loans I — Hih &%
(Note ii & iii) (Btatii X ifi) 177,330 107,796 97,418 82,657
180,467 112,302 97,418 82,657
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D
BE—F

37.

ZFENA=THIFFE

BORROWINGS (continued) 37. BE#»®
At 30 June 2013 and 2012, total current and non-current RIEBE—=FR_F——F A=+
bank loans and other borrowings were repayable as B RBEIERBRITERREME
Sllows: EBRBEARATFHESR
The Group The Company
rEH AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —T—_—F =ZB—=F —ZT—_F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT FETT FEIT
Carrying amounts AEERmE -
repayable:
On demand or within one fEZ ks —F R
year 178,442 105,083 97,418 82,657
More than one year, but —4 LA B
not exceeding two M LA
years 1,807 3,864 — —
More than two years, MENRE 8
but not exceeding five  AFAR
years 218 3565 — —
180,467 112,302 97,418 82,657
Less: Amounts due within  J& - JREE EFTHIR
one year shown in —FAEEZ
current liabilities RIE (178,442) (105,083) (97,418) (82,657)
Amounts shown under PEERBBE L
non-current liabilities FRIE 2,025 7,219 — —
Notes: Ktz -

At 30 June 2013 and 2012, the secured bank loans

carried interest at floating rates LIBOR+1.5% per annum

and are repayable within one year. The bank loans were

secured against the Group’s land and buildings in the
U.K amounting to approximately HK$250,685,000 (2012:
HK$259,823,000) and by unlimited multilateral guarantees

given by certain of its subsidiaries in the Group.

RZE—Z=ZFR_FT——FxA8
=+H BERBRITERTI UM
HERITRIERE + EFE1.5% 7t
B WER—FRNER - RTE
RIVAREEREE 2 + i &
F#9250,685,000 B (=T —=
4 : 259,823,000/ 7T ) * A KA
EEETHEA R FTIRME 2 &R
ZBERIEER -
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37. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

At 30 June 2013, included in the unsecured other loans
was approximately HK$14,412,000 (2012: HK$11,960,000)
loaned from iMerchant’s Asia Limited (“iMerchant”), a
subsidiary of Chinese Energy Holdings Limited (“Chinese
Energy”). Yau Yan Min, Raymond, a former independent
non-executive director of the Company and Chan Wai
Keung, a former non-executive director of the Company are
both executive directors of Chinese Energy. The amounts
represented a principal of approximately HK$10,000,000
(2012: HK$10,000,000) and accrued interest of
approximately HK$4,412,000 (2012: HK$1,960,000). The
loan is overdue and carries interest at fixed rates of 0.5%
per annum and penalty interest at 2% per month.

At 30 June 2013, the remaining unsecured other loans
were loaned from independent third parties. These loans
are either overdue or repayable within one year and carried
interest ranging from interest free to 30% per annum
(including penalty interest at 2% per month).

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group obtained
new borrowings of approximately HK$62,096,000 (2012:
HK$13,729,000) to finance its working capital.

The Group’s bank and other loans were denominated
in GBP and HK$. The directors of the Company believe
that the Group and the Company do not have foreign
exchange exposures as the Group’s bank and other loans
denominated in GBP will be repaid in GBP and those loans
denominated in HK$ will be settled by HK$.

37.

B8

Kt

(if)

(iii)

(#&)

R=ZT—=F~A=+RH" &K
FEMEFBIERE iMerchant's
Asia Limited ([iMerchant] -
EZHRERARABEER
BERDZHBRR)ZERL
14,412,000 L(ZE — = F
11,960,000% 7T ) ° AN R & Z Al
B IFRITEFBERARA
ZAIERITEERERGRER
BERZHAITES - ZREER
% #910,000,000/8 L(=ZZT — =
4 110,000,000 7t ) & & 5T F
8 494,412,000 T(=ZF — =
Ewsmom%n><ﬂmeﬁ
B - R EE K 0.6% 51 B KX
FBRAFR2%THEE S

R-ZE—=FA=1+H &#T
zﬂﬂi#ﬁﬂﬂﬁtfﬁz% KTy R B B
:HZIéfw%zi? SR 2 160 H
HER—FAER TERESE
if\fso%;r%( Ei S A7
K2%FTHER) o
REBE-_ZT—=F-"A=+8
LtFE AEBREBHEELD
62,096,000 (=T — =4
13,729,000 7T ) * LA H &

RNEEZRITREMEKTIAR
BERBTTAEMN -  ADREEH
B ARANEBUESEHENZ
$R1T R E b B FOE A TR (E R

M 5 5 A TR B AL 2 B 38 A
BILEE  MAEERARAL
wHNERR o
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38. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

38.

BNEEHE

The Group The Company
rEE AT
2013 2013 2012
—E—= —T——F ZEBE-=F —ZT——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET FET
Amounts due to directors: FEffEEFIE :
Ma Shui Cheong (Note i) St (Afati) 544 544 —
Yeung Ka Shing, Carson 553 (#1:Eii)
(Note ii) 182,808 179,819 5,582 5,582
183,352 179,819 6,126 5,582
Less: Amounts included in J& ‘- st ARBIARGZ
current liabilities FIE (544) — (544) —
Non-current liabilities EE UN=K 182,808 179,819 5,582 5,582

The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

Included in the amounts due to Yeung Ka Shing,
Carson are approximately HK$177,226,000 (2012:
HK$174,237,000) which is unsecured, subject to interest
of 5% per annum, and has no fixed term of repayment.
All other amounts are unsecured, interest free and have
no fixed terms of repayment. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson has
undertaken not to demand for repayment of these amounts
until the Company and the Group are financially capable
to do so. The interest advance is not repayable within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period and is
therefore considered in substance as a quasi-equity loan to
finance the Company and Group’s long-term investments.

Pursuant to a “Restraint and Charging Order” (the “Order”)
issued by the High Court of Hong Kong on 6 July 2011,
the assets of Yeung Ka Sing, Carson, have been frozen.
At the date of issuance of these consolidated financial
statements, the Order has still not yet been lifted.

(if)

ZREREAM  RERARE
SRR -

EMBRHZXERELD
177,226,000 B (=2 — =4 :
174,237,000 7 ) * & K38 A&
AR B FEF R5% T BRI E
EERAE - TEHMRIERE
B 2R RWEEEERE -
BRUABFRFE IS EREEZS
B BAEARBRAEES T
BEENBHRBIE - ZFISEBKE
ARBEHREST T —EARE
B MEAREELERAERA
AIRAEERGREZ ERER

o
N °

REEESSERR - ——4
CANBREEZ R EFDS
(T2R2))  BRMZEED R
Rt REFEAMBERR 2T
LA ZESDARY -
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F=

39.

—=FNA=THIEFE

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
The Group

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the

movements during the year were as follows:

39. ELEHEEME

REME
RiZEPBAN KR ELTHER

BZHEKED RRERZZEMT

Revaluation Revaluation
of land and of intangible
building assets Total
B By
THRETF BEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 July 2011 R-_ZE——F+A—H 33,620 10,881 44,501
Exchange realignment PE 3 8 2 (956) (309) (1,265)
At 30 June 2012 RZE——FA=1H 32,664 10,572 43,236
Exchange realignment PE 3 FAEE (767) (229) (996)
Effect of a change in HERegy w8
tax rate (2,513) (813) (3,326)
Credited to consolidated sFA&LREEZ=E &
statement of profit HEt2mmikasR
or loss and other
comprehensive income (753) (865) (1,618)
At 30 June 2013 R-TE—=F"A=1H 28,631 8,665 37,296
At 30 June 2013, the Group has unused tax losses of RZE—=FA=+H A£E8HE

approximately HK$138,895,000 (2012: HK$104,223,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Such

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

RB) AT IEE B4 138,895,000 78 7T
(ZZ— =4 : 104,223,000 7T ) A]
FRYEI SHAR S F) o B A 2R 2R F 37
FELATER - MU LA B TE A IE
RIECEHIBEE - BREBSIEERS
whes o
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40. SHARE CAPITAL 40. B
2013 2012
—E-=F SEEEs e
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BB EE &8 PAGE E x|
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of FREE0.01BT
HK$0.01 each TR 10,000,000,000 100,000 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At 1 July 2011, RZZT——4
30 June 2012 +H—RH-
and 2013 —E-ZFR
—T-=%
NA=1H 3,887,753,400 38,878  3,887,753,400 38,878
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41. RESERVES 4. #%E
(@) The Group (a) rEE
Share Share option Capital  Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ROEE  BRERG ERRE BERE ZiER @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T TET A &L AT
(Note (i) (Note (ii) (Note (i) (Note (iv))
(Bt () (W) (W)  (Wily)
At 1 July 2011 RZF——Ftf—-H 1,132,593 1,497 6,510 (13,015)  (1,284,140) (156,555)
Profit for the year REERF - - = = 136,911 136,911
Other comprehensive income A fEE A
for the year el e - — — 301 — 301
Total comprehensive income  AEEZE
for the year e - - — 301 136,911 137,212
At 30 June 2012 R=Z-—F A=TH 1,132,593 1497 6,510 (12,714)  (1,147,229) (19,343)
Loss for the year TEEER - — - — (118,760)  (118,760)
Other comprehensive expenses A4 EE At
for the year 2EAX - - = (304) — (304)
Total comprehensive expenses AFE 2 A E%
for the year — — — (304) (118,760) (119,064)
Transfer to reserve for value of EXNEBRERE
share options lapsed BEEEE - (1,497) = = 1497 =
At 30 June 2013 R-E-ZEXAZHR 1132503 - 6510 (13018) (1264492  (138.407)
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41.

RESERVES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

a1. RE®

The Group (Continued) (a) #A&EEE)
Notes: Mt -
(i) Share premium (i) B DR E
The application of the share premium account is B RERZERAXZHAES
governed by applicable regulations of the Cayman HEBARHESE -
Islands.
(i) Share option reserve (ii) BREREE
The share option reserve represents the fair value BEREREEEBAQR
at the respective grant dates in respect of the AR TE AR 2 S AR
outstanding share options of the Company. H BBz AFE -
(iii) Capital reserve (iii) BRGNS
Capital reserve represents the waiver of amounts B E B IR R B KR
due to a major shareholder. RHKIA ©
(iv) Translation reserve (iv) EREE
Translation reserve is arising from the translation M N R E £ B I E g
of foreign currencies in overseas subsidiaries from MR Rz AN (Thee &
its functional currency to the Group’s presentation BIZEAEEZFE -
currency.
The Company (b) A2F
Contribution Share Share option Capital Accumulated
surplus premium reserve reserve losses Total
BB KB  BRERE ERitE ZitFE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT BT BT AT AT
(Note (i)) (Note (ii)
(Wit () (Wit (i)
A1 July 2011 N=B——E+A-R 20001 1132593 1497 6510 (1193617)  (30.616)
Loss and total comprehensive  AEEBER
expenses for the year FERRLE - - — = (51,266) (51,266)
At 30 June 2012 WN=2——F~E=+H 22,201 1,132,593 1497 6,510 (1,244,883) (82,082)
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEERZE
expenses for the year % % — — - — (69,333) (69,333)
Transfer 1o reserve for value of iEXMEBRERR
share options lapsed EREERE — — (1,497) — 1,497 —
At 30 June 2013 RZF-=F;A=1H 22,201 1,132,593 — 6,510 (1,312,719) (151,415)
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£

41.

42,

RESERVES (Continued)

(b) The Company (Continued)

Notes:

®

(i)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the excess of
the fair value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the group reorganisation over the nominal value
of the shares of the Company issued in exchange
therefor.

Under the Companies Law (2001 Second Revision)
of the Cayman lIslands, the contributed surplus
account is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company under certain circumstances.

Capital reserve
Capital reserve represents the waiver of amounts
due to a major shareholder.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) became effective on 22 October 2002. The
major terms of the Scheme, in conjunction with the

requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules are set out

as follows:

(i) The purpose of the Scheme is providing incentives

and rewards to full-time employees and consultants

of the Group in recognition of their contribution to

the Group.

(i) Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the directors

may, at their absolute discretion, invite full-time

employees of the Group including executive

directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries

and consultants (the “Eligible Persons”) to take up

options to subscribe for shares.

41.

42,

ER-IE D)

(b)

AT ()

Hyat

(i) BARER
BABHERBEEEA

PR B A R A F(E
ARARRREBEZENBER
AT B EERE
ZER -

BRESHESQADE(Z
T -FF - REF
hR) - RRARIAIEE T1E
ST ABARERIR A Z X
HRRREHDIK ©

(ii) EX#E
BA R R EMN KR
HREE o

PABAR X A4 2 =R T8
ARRzRAB BB 8 ([ %8 ])
RZBF-ZFTAZ+TZHER &
A2 ERGHER LHARREA7
BZHRTEHINWT -

(i)

&tz B AERRE R OI#E
UASEELEMZAEE R
e 8 MR o

E=AAEZKEETZRR
T 2RREEFARE 2R
BREE(BRERARRHEEM
MEARZHITES) REMH
(BEBALDEMNERE
VARREE R AR -
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42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the total issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
on the exercise of options granted and to be
granted (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant to each of the Eligible Persons shall not
exceed 1% of the total issued share capital of
the Company in issue unless (i) a shareholders’
circular is dispatched to the shareholders; (ii) the
shareholders approve the grant of the options
in excess of the limit referred to herein; and (iii)
the relevant Eligible Persons and their associates
abstain from voting on the resolution.

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to
the Eligible Persons by letter in such form as the
board of directors may from time to time determine
and shall remain open for acceptance by the
Eligible Persons concerned for a period of 28 days
from the date upon which it is made, provided that
no such offer shall be open for acceptance after the
10th anniversary of the adoption date or after the
Scheme has been terminated.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1
is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an
option. An option shall be deemed to have been
accepted when the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the option duly signed by the Eligible
Persons together with the said consideration of
HK$1 is received by the Company.

42,

U3 A 2 FRIE (4

(iiy  RBARRZEREMER
TEZFABRARITEBREE
TIEMAIREA T EITZ DR
BT BREARATREET

&R A2 E30% °

(iv) BERSEEBATRLBE
ZAEM121E A AR - BB &
Rt T 2 AR (B
BATE R ARITE 2 BEARAE)
BITEMBEBEITRGTETZ
RDBETEBARATE
TRABEA% - BRIE(G)ER
PR R BT B AR SR ER ¢ (i) AR R
BE/EE B FB B AR STl BR BB 2
REREAE : R (i) BEAEHBA
TREBRBALIHREEIZER

MEIER °

(v) BHBREZZHEAREES
AR EE 2 BABKTA
BRALTRIEL - MAERA
TAIRELDREL B LR 28
BHRAZS  EEOTER
R B B R A 10 B S 18 3%

FTEIAR 1R -

(Vi) ERBEER ARARS
1R T2 P AIRERFAR
B - WARRKEHRSERA
TIEARE Z RNBERE ST
BIA - B L1 BTRE
AR ISR AR A E A -
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42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(vii)

The exercise price for shares under the Scheme
may be determined by the directors at its absolute
discretion but in any event will not be less than the
highest of:

(a) The closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must
be a business day;

(b) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in daily quotations sheets of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(c) nominal value of shares.

Unless otherwise in the terms of the Scheme, an
option may be exercised any time during the period
commencing on the expiry of six calendar months
after the date on which the option is deemed to be
granted and accepted and expiring on a date to be
determined and notified by the board of directors
to each grantee, but in any event not later than 10
years from the date of grant of option but subject to
the early termination of the Scheme.

42,

RSB <2 E @)

(vii)

ZaT 8 TR 2 TR B HE
FERBNBETE - EREMIB
AT TAEERTIIREE

(a) MELBHM(VAREZ
ER)BREARE
KRG AD 2 W fE

(b) EERLBHAAE
EEABIAEAR
BRI 2 F13
WmfE - &

(c) IfpmfE-

BRIEZAT Bl Z RSB RE
75 R ASCAE T 70 P B A A AR
REREREERZ HHIERN
EEAEAEEESETEEE R
BB AR A Z B HLEHIRE A
BERFTTE - MERMEMITR T
SENBEER L A e
104F - XA EIATIRFRLLE -
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42,

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 42,

The following table shows the movements in the Company’s
share options during the years ended 30 June 2012 and
2013:

DRGNS 2RE sz
TREATEBEZT——FRZFT—=
FRNAZTHIEFERRRIERE S

Number of options outstanding

RMTEBREHE
At 1 July
2011 and Lapsed Exercise
30 June during At 30 June price
Category Date of grant 2013 the year 2013  Exercise Period per share
RZB——F
tA-BR
—B-=F R-B-=%
5l REBH  A~A=tAH FREM  ASAZTR TR BRITHEE
Directors: HK$
S BT
Steven McManaman 21 August 2007 2,089,720 (2,089,720) — 21 August 2007 1.0777
(resigned on 2 June to 20 August
2012) 2017
Steven McManaman eS8 o3 “ETLENA
(R=Z2——%5A NA=+—H —+-8%
ZHEH) B o3
NA=tH
Other employees 7 June 2007 25,076,636  (25,076,636) — 7 June 2007 to 0.4786
6 June 2017
HiES “EERHE “EETLE
~NAtH NAtAZE
—T—tF
~NARE

27,166,356  (27,166,356)

Pursuant to the terms of the share option scheme of the
Company, the outstanding share options granted on 7 June
2007 were adjusted from 24,000,000 shares to 25,076,636
shares and the exercise prices were adjusted from HK$0.5
to HK$0.4786, and the outstanding share options granted
on 21 August 2007 were adjusted from 2,000,000 shares to
2,089,720 shares and the exercise price was adjusted from
HK$1.126 to HK$1.077 as a result of the completion of the
open offer of the Company made during the period.

The share options were all lapsed during the year ended
30 June 2013.

EEARARRERETZ AREET
B - RN BB RE T B 2 1G5
RZBELFERNALAREZRITE
88 I% 4 © £ 24,000,000 % A% 7 58 2
£ 25,076,636 Ik fh - ITTEEREZ
FO.5BILHHEZR0.4786 /8L © MR
—EEHFENAZ+—BEEHZ AT
BB AZ4E E A 2,000,000 % A% 17 78 &
% 2,089,720 Ik &t - MAITEEE B
1.126 BILHHEE1.077 BT °

HE"ZT-—=FXA=1THILFE "
BARED 2E0R -
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HEZ

42,

43.

FSEAASFAILEE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

The weighted average exercise price of the share options
outstanding during the year ended 30 June 2012 was
HK$0.5247. The options outstanding at 30 June 2013 have
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 5 years.

At 30 June 2012, the Company had 27,166,356 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in
full of the remaining share options at 30 June 2013 would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 27,166,356 additional ordinary shares of
the Company which represented 0.7% of the Company’s
shares in issue.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the finance cost
charged on other borrowings wholly repayable within five
years of approximately HK$25,006,000 remained unpaid
and was included in borrowings and amounts due to
directors (2012: HK$20,559,000).

During the year ended 30 June 2013, interest income on
amounts due from related companies of approximately
HK$1,089,000 remained unpaid and was included in
amounts due from related companies (2012: HK$921,000).

42,

43.

AR 2 A 2 "R (1)
RBE-T-—FXA=TALE
BRI 2 R IR IR I 1T 6
EBROL47TELIN T —=FH
=8 - MR BRE T
RSB HFHAREF -

R-ZZE——F~A=+H ' KA7F
BEZFERRTEZERER
27,166,356 17 ° RIZE AR R A H K 2
BEAREH RZZT—=F~A=+
BITE2 S THERES SR
27,166,356 i A~ A 7] 2 B 40 & @
i - AEARARIBEITRN Z20.7% ©

FEHRERS
REBE-_ZT—=F~"A=1+HBL*F
B BREARATFREZHEEZHEME
B UE 2z B 75 B AN 49 25,006,000 7
TARSZHA Wt ABEREMNE
ERE(ZT——4F :20,559,000/8
JT) °

REBEE-_T—=F~A=1+HLF
B ERBEABFEZFERA
#91,089,00078 7T 1 K X 4 - I &F
AEWBERARFKE(ZS—ZF
921,000 7T) °
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44. COMMITMENTS 44. EIE
(i) Operating lease arrangements (i) REBHORH
The Group as lessee AEEERBABA
The Group leases certain premises under operating AREERBLERNLHEE
lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for a aTWE - HEZEHEBANT
term ranging from three to five years. The Group IESF - AEBEWENEE
does not have an option to purchase the leased HEmKrBEREEEE
assets at the expiry of the lease period. At the end BHE o MIREEIR - AEER
of the reporting period, the Group’s total future BRI HER A E A 2 KRR &
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable Rie@BOT !
operating leases are as follows:
2013 2012
—g—= —T—CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 2,459 3,461
After one year but within five years —FRERERAEFA 3,644 5,279
6,103 8,740
(i) Commitments (i)  AE

At 30 June 2013, the Group had authorised but not
contracted for commitments for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$5,165,000 (2012: Nil).

R-E—=%A=+H' ' &
EEAKEDE  BERR
BEERERTHZEED
45,165,000 T( =& — =
2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013

#FHz=—=F

BE—=—

45.

ZFENA=THIEFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the

following contingent liabilities:

Player transfer costs

Under the terms of contracts with other football
clubs in respect of the player transfers, additional
player transfer cost would become payable if
certain specific performance conditions are met.
The maximum amount not provided that could be
payable in respect of the transfers up to 30 June
2013 was approximately HK$8,428,000 (equivalent
to GBP714,000) (2012: HK$16,497,000, equivalent
to GBP1,362,000). At the end of the reporting period
and up to the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, none of these amounts has
become crystallised.

Claim from a former director against the
Company

On 10 May 2013, the former director, Mr. Lee Yiu
Tung (the “Claimant”) filed a claim in the Labour
Tribunal of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“HKSAR”) for unpaid wages, wages in
lieu of notice and expenses paid on behalf of
the Company up to the amount of approximately
HK$1,484,000. The Company made a counterclaim
against the Claimant on 29 May 2013 in respect of
wages paid to the Claimant for the months from July
to October 2012 up to the amount of HK$240,000 in
which the Claimant was absent from his office and
reimbursements of expenses paid to the Claimant
during 2010 to 2012 totaling HK$2,000,000 for
business/projects not related to the Company. On
4 June 2013, both parties agreed that the case
would be transferred to the High Court in HKSAR
for judgment. The Company have obtained legal
advice in respect of the merits of the case and the
directors of the Company are confident that they
have a strong defence in this action and therefore,
no provision for this claim have been made.

45. HAREE
RBEER AEEEUTRAE

f&:

REEEEM
BERKEESHEMIRE
RN Z AR ZIER - MEE
HETHERBGE  BIER
BIHINREHSEBR - BHEZ
T—=F,A=+HA s
HeENmERBEEZRS
X I8 4 58,428,000 7% Jr (4
LM 714,000 %) (=T —=
4 : 16,497,000/ Jt © A &
71,362,000 & £ ) o R W&
HRRBEZEZE M BRE
BERH  SIEZERIEEL
T -

AMEEAARRFREAR

RZZE—=FRA+H " A
EETBERAEE(RHRREAD
mEARRTHRE(SE S
FRDLEEFHRIRL S
E BERF RBAF2K
REAQRAZNzHATEELD
1,484,000 7T ° R RAFR =
T—=—FRA-_thARHBEZR
ARERBR - ERE-Z—=
FEAZTAMEHEEARL
HERY)ENBRREAZLE
R 240,000 TR ZF —
TEE T —FARARKHEAR
AEE ¥ THREENBRR
AZ X &4 2,000,000
BILe RZE—=ZF AN
H EFERERRURBHE
BRE S SRR AR o KA
ERGREKRINEE ZEER
R ARRAREFREBRFLER
UL ERFARIER B ik - BE
ERLUL R REL B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFE

46.

RELATED PARTY AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)

46. BELRBFERERS

In addition to a related party balances detailed in (a) KEEPEHRE KT8
the consolidated financial statements and Notes 28, 35 % 387 fpllsFil 2 B E 7 45
35 and 38, respectively, the Group entered into the FRON - FN - ANEFEREER
following significant transactions with related parties (s TR SRR EmAR
during the year, some of which are also deemed to Bl IR #5148 7 A8 A ) 5T 2 BA
be connected parties pursuant to the Listing Rules: TEARS
2013 2012
—g—= —T—CF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
itz3 FET FHT
Interest paid to iMerchant’'s B {JiMerchant’s Asia
Asia Limited (“iMerchant”) Limited ([iMerchant )
ZHE (i) 2,452 1,960
Interest paid on amounts due EFHERBFIEZ
to Yeung Ka Sing, Carson 2AFE (ii) 7,795 7,833
Advertising expenses paid B ERR T B R A A
to Sing Pao Newspaper (TR T 1) 2
Company Limited (“Sing Pao  E&BIX
Newspaper”) (iii) 820 —
Consultancy fees paid to Asia BffXEBEHR A A
Rays Limited (“Asia Rays”) ([HE])zERE (iv) 5,920 8,063
Rental expenses paid to Asia Bt HEBEZHERX
Rays (v) 730 739
Operating cost paid to 217 Birmingham City
Birmingham City Ladies Ladies Football Club
Football Club Limited Limited ([ BC Ladies
(“BC Ladies FC") FCJ) Z & &R AN (vi) 453 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

46. RELATED PARTY AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Notes:

)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(Continued)

The interest rate on the loan from iMerchant was based on
the terms of the agreement entered into among the parties.
iMerchant, a subsidiary of Chinese Energy Holdings
Limited (“Chinese Energy”). Yau Yan Min, Raymond, a
former independent non-executive director of the Company
and Chan Wai Keung, a former non-executive director
of the Company are both executive directors of Chinese
Energy.

The interest rate on the amounts due to Yeung Ka Sing,
Carson was based on terms agreed among the parties.

The directors of the Company considered Sing Pao Media,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, but trading of its
shares have been suspended since 28 April 2005, and its
subsidiary, Sing Pao Newspaper (together referred to as
the “Sing Pao Group”) are related companies of the Group
as Yeung Ka Sing, Carson, a substantial shareholder of
the Company is also the key shareholder of the Sing Pao
Group. Sing Pao Newspaper is an indirect subsidiary of
Sing Pao Media.

Advertising expenses was based on terms agreed between
the parties.

Peter Pannu, chief executive and director of the Company
has beneficial interests in Asia Rays. On 22 September
2009, the Group entered into a consultancy agreement
with Asia Rays for the provision of consultancy services
to Group on a monthly fee of HK$310,000 tax-free for a
term of five years commencing from 1 October 2009 and
expiring on 30 September 2014. The consultancy was
amended to GBP65,000 per month commencing from 1
July 2011 as per the amendment letter dated 28 July 2011.
On 28 December 2011, the Group entered into a deed of
variation with Asia Rays for the provision of consultancy
services to the Group at a monthly fee of HK$400,000
per month commencing from 1 January 2012. Details of
the terms of the consultancy agreement are set in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 April 2013.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, consultancy fees of
approximately HK$4,800,000 (2012: HK$7,533,000) and
reimbursements of tax of approximately HK$1,120,000
(2012: HK$530,000) was paid to Asia Rays.

(a)
Hifat -

)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

46. BEFIRFEBRERS &)

(%)

7R B iMerchant 2 B 5% Fl| & Ty #%
KA Z B IR REE °
iMerchant &% 8 g2 JRIZRE R A
A([EERERDZHBAR - &
AR Z BB IERITE S EA
RARBZAIERITESRIER
HEEBRRINTES -

FE N 15 R BRI 2 F 3R TR RT 49
T3 TE Z ARREEE

AAREERREBRER(—HR
B EMZAR  EERMDE
—EERFMOA-+/\BREE
FEE)REMWME B KHRRT
(RRAIKBER ] DAEEZ
MEAR RARAARZEE
BRGEEHANMSRBER 2 TR
IRIR - BRI ARRERZ M
EHB AR -

& & B S Ty IR AT K973 6 5E 2 1R
B -

RD R 21T 4K 3k & = Peter
Pannuml K EF B Em s ©
R=ZEZTAFALA=+=8"
AEERENBEIT BB BE - A
% & A310,0008 T 2 & A(%
MIMAEBEREBRRE - A
MRS A-TTNAFTA—H
HirE—_T—NFNLA=+HE
W REBMA-T——FLA
TN NBZEFTRE A=
——FtA— A% BHEEE
i &S A65000E&FE - N T
——%®+=-A=-+/N\B  K&£E
BB EE KB =
T——_F—A—HHBEEA
400,000/t 2 B R M A& E 2
HERRY - ERBEGER T
BERARTAR_T—=FWA
—t+=HHEZ M -

REBE-_ZT—=FA=1+A1
£ F . R # 44,800,000/ T
(ZZ——% : 7,533,000 7T) &
EF#1,120,000/8 (=T ——
£ : 530,000/ ) B X F
1§°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013

£

46.

47.

SE—CEAA= L ALFE

RELATED PARTY AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(v) Rental expenses paid to Asia Rays was in accordance with
the terms of the tenancy agreement.

(vi) Peter Pannu, chief executive and director of the Company
has beneficial interests in BC Ladies FC.

(b) Key management compensation
The key management personnel of the Group
comprises the directors of the Company only.
Details of compensation of directors are included in
Note 16.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(a) Loan financing

On 27 July 2013, the Group entered into a loan
agreement with U-Continent Holdings Limited
(“U-Continent”), an independent third party for a
loan in the principal amount of HK$20,000,000
(“Loan 17) for up to 12 months at a monthly interest
rate of 0.5%. Details of the terms of the loan
arrangement are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 1 August 2013.

On 18 November 2013, the Group entered into
another loan agreement with U-Continent for a loan
in the principal amount of HK$15,000,000 (“Loan
2") for up to 12 months at a monthly interest rate of
0.5%. Details of the terms of the loan arrangement
are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 19 November 2013.

46.

47.

BELIRSEBRERS &)

(@ (&)
Hiet - (&)

(v) EfftEsHSR X IREAELY
ZNETREETE °

(vi) AR 2 17 B4R 3% E 5 Peter
Pannu BC Ladies FCHEAE

(b) EEEEHS
NEBEETBEEERKEE B
ARBES - EEME 25F1B
ERIFE6 ©

BEHRER

(a) EF
RZE—=FtA=++t
B "&EEBEBYE =
7 U-Continent Holdings
Limited ([ U-Continent]) B2
% %8 /20,000,000 T * &
%1288 - 8 ANER0.5%
ZEREFADI L E R
= o BB RLBHERZ 1B
HRARAR -_ZE—=F/\A
—HFREZ 2 o

R=—Z—=F+—A+N\H "
AEE B U-Continent S AN &
% 415,000,000/ T * & %
12 A - BRAFERK05%
ZEFRTEZ 2B —H
Btz - BEERTHIER
ZHBERARRR =T —=
F+—At+hBHEZ M-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Potential disposal of the professional football
operation

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 22 January 2013 and 26 February 2013,
the Group was approached by some prospective
buyers to explore the possibility of purchasing BCP
and BCFC. No binding agreements have been
reached. As detailed in the announcement of the
Company dated 22 October 2013, the directors of
the Company stated that there was “no immediate
plans to dispose of a controlling equity interest in
BCP and/or BCFC”.

Transfer of player registration

Transfers of player registrations subsequent to
30 June 2013 resulted in a net GBP2,591,000
(equivalent to HK$30,567,000) receivable to the
Group.

Placement of shares and issue of convertible
notes
(i) On 12 November 2013, the Company and
Shenyin Wanguo Capital (H.K.) Limited (the
“Placing Agent”) entered into a placing
agreement pursuant to which the Placing
Agent will conduct the placing, on a fully
underwritten basis, of 1,260,000,000 placing
shares to not less than six professional,
institutional, or other investor(s) that are
independent third parties and to the extent
any such placing shares are not placed, to
take up those placing shares itself at the
placing price of HK$0.05 per Placing Share.

47. HMEHEEE(7)

(b)

(c)

(d)

T SRR R R
REAATR=F—=F— A
—t= a& 2-=4-A

—t+ARBRHEZAMMG - BETE
EERYEAEEER - AW
7 B8 E BCP X BCFC 2 A] &
Mo AR Az mRE
Ko AR RZTE—=
F+AZ+=ZRAABZLMH
Fiafill - RRRIESZIEL -
AAF[ W EHERBCP &
5 BCFC 2 i) 14 B4 2 B s 51
£

HERE M

ZE—=FX A=t+RH% &
RIK B M AAREE T REKR
X T JF %A 2,591,000 5 85 (48
£ 30,567,000 7T) ©

BEROEBITURKREE

(i) n=
+

T—=%+—A8
—H-ARQRHER
REEFEES)
AR A FE &1
B)ET B & e
Bt RBERERR
BH O EEEITER
%%E’&MEEE
& B2 & B& 5 0.05%
TENDPRANERE
NEZR2HEE K
B HMKEERE
1,260,000,000 % A &
AR - finl £ 17T 5% 5 B
ERMOHARERE - 8l
HEgmaBEzEE
BRRG -

EH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B M AR P

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFE

47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(d) Placement of shares and issue of convertible

notes (Continued)

(i)

On 12 November 2013, the Company and
U-Continent (the “Subscriber”) entered into
a convertible note subscription agreement
(“First CB Subscription Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company agrees
to issue, and the Subscriber agrees to
subscribe to, convertible notes (“First
Convertible Bond”) to the principal amount
of HK$50 million with a conversion price
of HK$0.03 per conversion share. The
convertible bond isunsecured, zero coupon
interest rate and have a maturity date of two
years from the date of issue.

Pursuant to the first deed of variation dated
19 November 2013, Loan 1 and Loan 2 will
be used to set-off the First Convertible Bond
and the Subscriber will only be required to
pay the balance of the First CB Subscription
Agreement amount of HK$15,000,000.

47. HEHEEE (7

(d EBEERORBITITLARRERE

(%)
(if)

R—_ZT—=%+—A8
+=-—H KA AH
U-Continent ([:2 B
A D) ET 37 Al iR = 8
REHZE(E -
BESRBERHRE])
B AARREZR
T MREARER
f& 78 & %850,000,000
BrLzalkkER
([ — % K E
F1) RBmEBERER
H R D 0.037 T o

AR EsAEE
#ZERR MEH
AARETASER
M o

REBMAS-_T—=

F+—ATHhBZE
— BT RE  BEX
1 REF2 K AREE
E—AIMERES M
REAEEINE—
AR AR & 5 R &
2 % #: 15,000,000 75
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BE=—LFT—=F N NA=1HIFEF

47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)
(d) Placement of shares and issue of convertible
notes (Continued)

(iii) On 12 November 2013, the Company and
Subscriber entered into a second convertible
note subscription agreement (“Second
CB Subscription Agreement”), pursuant
to which the Company agrees to issue,
and the Subscriber agrees to subscribe
to, convertible notes (“Second Convertible
Bond”) to the aggregate principal amount
of HK$250,000,000 in two tranches of
HK$125,000,000 each, with a conversion
price of HK$0.03 per conversion share. Each
tranche of the Second Convertible Bond are
unsecured, zero coupon interest rate and has
a maturity date of two years from the date of

issue.

Pursuant to the second deed of variation
dated 19 November 2013, the principal sum
of the Second Convertible Bond was varied
from the original amount of HK$250,000,000
to HK$125,000,000 and shall be completed
within three months following the resumption
of trading in the shares of the Company.

Details of the terms of the placement of shares
and issue of convertible notes are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 12 November
2013.

47. HMEHEEE(7)

(d EBEERORBTITLARRERE

(%)
(iii)

R —=ZF+—
B+=-—8B ' &XAX7A
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1 7] R R R AR R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2013
B —_F—=F NA=1HIFEZE

47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(e)

Proposed deed of novation, debt capitalisation
agreement and subscription agreement

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 12 November 2013:

° the Company, BCFC, a subsidiary of the
Group and Yeung Ka Shing, Carson (“Mr.
Yeung”) propose to enter into a deed of
novation, pursuant to which Mr. Yeung will
agree to and accept the liabilities of BCFC
due to Mr. Yeung in sum of approximately
GBP15,255,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$190,074,000) (the “Debt”) being
assumed by the Company. Upon completion
of the deed of novation, the Company will
assume the obligations and liabilities under
the Debt, and Mr. Yeung will have no further
rights against BCFC under the Debt; and

° the Company and Mr. Yeung propose to
enter into a debt capitalisation agreement,
pursuant to which and subject to the entering
into of the deed of novation as detailed
above, the Company will agree to capitalise
the Debt owed by the Company to Mr.Yeung,
by Mr. Yeung agreeing to subscribe for, and
the Company agreeing to issue to Mr. Yeung,
a debt convertible bond (“Debt CB”). The
Company and Mr. Yeung further propose to
enter into a subscription agreement, pursuant
to which and subject to the completion of the
debt capitalisation agreement, the Company
will agree to capitalise the Debt owed by
the Company to Mr. Yeung, by Mr. Yeung
agreeing to subscribe for, and the Company
agreeing to issue to Mr. Yeung, the Debt CB,
to the principal amount of HK$190,074,000
with a conversion price of HK$0.03 per Debt
CB. The Debt CB is unsecured, zero coupon
interest and has a maturity date of two years
from the date of issue.

47. HEHEEE (7

(e)

EREREERE GRER
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEMBRE

For the For the For the For the For the
year year 12 months 15 months 12 months
ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 31 March
~HA=1+H ~NA=1H ~NA=1+H ~A=+H =ZA=t+—H
LFE HEE H+=@A IF+REA IE+=18A
Result £ 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=F —T—CF —T——F —E-EF “EThE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET F&T FET
Turnover EETE 294,497 489,887 781,366 581,596 10,660
(Loss) profit before Rt AT (518 )& A
taxation (125,532) 143,688 (784,602) (431,861) (91,755)
Income tax credit PG HiE 2 4,944 — 153,783 40,757 78
(Loss) profit before REtIEiE =
non-controlling (E18)mAl
interests (120,588) 143,688 (630,819) (391,104) (91,677)
Attributable to: JEfh
Owners of the VN/NGIE FEDN
company (118,760) 136,911 (612,054) (387,684) (91,677)
Non-controlling ESt g
interests (1,828) 6,777 (18,765) (3,420) —
(120,588) 143,688 (630,819) (391,104) (91,677)
At 30 June At 31 March
i
RAB=1+H =ZA=+—H
Assets and liabilities BEZE 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f —T—=F —T——%F —T-TF —ETNE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T FET FET FET
Total assets BERE 464,961 579,136 627,330 1,243,235 68,629
Total liabilities BEEE (564,230) (557,502) (749,695) (9083,630) (133,852)
Shareholder’s fund BREES (99,269) 21,634 (122,365) 339,605 (65,223)
Total equity FEIGHEmAARE
attributable to:
Owners of the ViN/NCIEZ YN
company (99,529) 19,535 (117,677) 324,914 (65,223)
Non-controlling FEE R
interests 260 2,099 (4,688) 14,691 —
(99,269) 21,634 (122,365) 339,605 (65,223)
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